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Executive Director's Statement
HITEEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Lamtex Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the financial results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the
“Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

RESULTS

The audited consolidated profit for the year of the Group
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$28.34 million. Basic earnings per share based on the
weighted average number of 935,122,469 shares in issue
amounted to HK3.03 cents (2016: loss per share HK19.65
cents).

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the businesses and operations of the
Group were mainly on securities trading and investment,
securities brokerage and provision of securities margin
finance, property investment, loan financing services and
trading and manufacturing of electronic products business.

The Group’s consolidated net profit for the year was
approximately HK$28.34 million (2016: net loss of
approximately HK$138.29 million). The consolidated
net assets of the Group increased from approximately
HK$341.32 million as at 31 December 2016 to
approximately HK$474.29 million as at 31 December 2017.
The consolidated net gain was mainly attributable to (i) fair
value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$18.53 million; and (ii) profit
derived from loan financing services of approximately
HK$21.03 million.

. 4 Lamtex Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Executive Director's Statement
HITEEREE

REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are mainly on
securities trading and investment, securities brokerage and
provision of securities margin finance, property investment,
loan financing services and trading and manufacturing of
electronic products business.

The gain of the Group for the year 2017 was mainly
attributable to fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and profit derived from loan
financing services.

The Group has been actively exploring other suitable
opportunities to diversify its business and further applying
the cost effective measures to improve the financial
performance of the Group.

The Group will try its best effort to achieve a financial
growth for the Group to maximize shareholders’ value.

Property investment business

Revenue of approximately HK$2.70 million was generated
from the operation of property investment business for the
reporting year (2016: approximately HK$2.32 million) and
its segmental result generated a profit of approximately
HK$1.91 million (2016: a profit of approximately
HK$13.27 million).

For details of investment properties, please refer to page
172.

Securities trading and investment business

The revenue generated from the operation in securities
trading and investment for the reporting year was
approximately HK$18.53 million (2016: negative revenue
approximately HK$122.33 million) and its segmental result
reflected a gain of approximately HK$18.53 million (2016:
loss of approximately HK$122.64 million).
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Executive Director's Statement
HITEEREE

Loan financing services business

Revenue of approximately HK$35.82 million was generated
from the Group’s loan financing services business for the
reporting period (2016: approximately HK$9.71 million)
and its segmental result recorded a profit of approximately
HK$21.03 million (2016: approximately HK$0.83 million).

Securities brokerage and provision of securities
margin finance business

Revenue of approximately HK$3.28 million was generated
from the Group’s stock broking business for the reporting
period (2016: approximately HK$2.57 million) and its
segmental result suffered a loss of approximately HK$4.60
million (2016: loss of approximately HK$3.33 million).

Trading and manufacturing of electronic products
business

Revenue of approximately HK$62.25 million was generated
from the Group’s electronic trading business for the
reporting period (2016: no such segment) and its segment
result recorded a profit of approximately HK$2.79 million
(2016: no such segment).

All other segments business

Revenue of approximately HK$0.08 million was generated
from other segments business (2016: approximately
HK$5.82 million) and segmental result suffered a loss of
HK$0.18 million (2016: loss of approximately HK$0.09
million).

. 6 Lamtex Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Executive Director's Statement
HITEEREE

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Group is cautiously optimistic on its business
viewpoint. As China’s economic growth has become stable
and with the framework of “One country, Two systems”,
Hong Kong has an important role to play in the One Belt
One Road Initiative, which is strongly supported by the
Chinese government, the Group remains positive on its
mid-to-long-term prospects and believes that Hong Kong
will continue to benefit from the partnership with China.

The Group will continue focus its efforts to the development
of its existing principal businesses (1) property investment
and (2) securities trading and investment (3) securities
brokerage and provision of securities margin finance (4)
loan financing services (5) trading and manufacturing of
electronic products and other potential projects with a view
to providing steady returns as well as fruitful growth for its
shareholders. The Group will invite competent staff to join
the Group in order to enhance and expand its capability to
cope with the ever-changing environment and opportunity
as they arise.

In addition, the Group will further extend its principal
business and direct its resources to the newly acquired and
existing businesses. For the newly acquired businesses,
Meteor Investment (H.K.) Limited (Tourism and Entertainment
business) and Praise Perfection Limited (Trading and
Manufacturing business), Praise Perfection Limited started
contributing to the Group’s 2017's revenue and results. No
contribution from Meteor Investment (H.K.) Ltd as it was
just a startup business which acquired by end of 2017. It is
expected that such new businesses will continue to be part of
the main income stream of the Group.

In the mean time, the Group will maintain a stringent
financial policy and a prudent cash flow management to
ensure reasonable liquidity for the Group’s operations
as well as for its existing and future investments. The
management believe that, in such an unpredictable
economic environment, these operation strategies will
enable the Group to maintain its competitiveness and
mitigate risks, thereby ensuring the Group’s sustainable
growth.
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Executive Director's Statement
HITEEREE

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

In order to increase our capital to capture the business
opportunities, the Company has completed the issuance of
convertible bonds in January 2017. The major part of the
net proceeds from the fund raising activities are used in
financing and developing existing business needs.

Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 19 January 2017, the Company completed the issue of
convertible bonds in principal amount of HK$200,000,000
pursuant to the specific mandate granted to the directors
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 9
January 2017 at a conversion price of HK$0.285 each.

The net proceeds of the Convertible Bonds Subscription
are intended to be used as working capital for existing
businesses in securities business including but not limited
to margin financing and loan financing service.

March 2018 Placement

On 29 March 2018, the Company completed the placing of
170,000,000 new shares of the Company pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the directors of the Company
at the annual general meeting held on 19 May 2017 at a
placing price of HK$0.43 each.

The net proceeds of the Placing are intended to be
approximately HK$49,000,000.00 for the development
of new business if opportunities arise and the remaining
balance for general working capital.

. 8 Lamtex Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Executive Director's Statement

:t S — =+ ==

HITEEMES

USE OF PROCEEDS FrasiEmRg

The Company has conducted the following equity fund RNEZE_ZE—+F+
raising activities during the year ended 31 December 2017. g ARRIBETAT

Date of Fund raising Net proceeds Intended use of net
announcement activity raised proceeds

FBEMBRIE MEREFRE
AERH KEED R BERR P

Issue of convertible
bonds in principal
amount of
HK$200,000,000

19 January 2017
and 19 April
2017

Approximately HK$100 (i)
million for financing

Approximately (i)
HK$198.68
million property development in
Maoming the PRC. (Due to
the disposal of Maoming
lands with reference to
the announcement of (ii)
the Company dated 18
April 2017, there was
change in the use of

the net proceeds. The
Company intends to
reallocate the proceeds for
property development in
Maoming in the amount
of (i) approximately

HK$30 million for further
developing the Company’s
securities business
including but not limited
to margin financing;

and (ii) approximately
HK$70 million for further
developing the Company’s
loan financing service;

MEZRERAT 2017F% 9 r

Actual use of net
proceeds

SREFRERAR

Approximately
HK$140 million was
used in developing
its loan financing
service; and

Approximately
HK$48 million was
used in its securities
business including
but not limited to
margin financing.
Approximately
HK$10.68 million not
yet utilized.
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Executive Director's Statement
HITEEREE

APPRECIATION &)

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thank to our loyal HKAEREXEETS ASHAERE X
shareholders, customers and business associates for their PREBBHEERERNZE L FHBUAH
continuous support to the Group. | would also extend BEE AR AAUAEREEELS
my gratitude and appreciation to our management and EET@EE—FHN BB HLREETF
all staff for their invaluable effort and contributions REGH NS -

throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board, REREEZ®

WU Xiaolin HITEF

Executive Director REM

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018 58 T \F=AZ+tNH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

This represented fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, securities brokerage service
income, loan interest income, trading and manufacturing
of electronic products income and rental income.

Segmental Results

During the reporting year, securities trading and
investment, loan financing service, securities brokerage
and provision of securities margin finance, property
investment and trading and manufacturing of electronic
products business remain the continuing business
operations of the Group.

Property investment business

Revenue of approximately HK$2.70 million was generated
from the operation of property investment business for the
reporting year (2016: approximately HK$2.32 million) and
its segmental result generated a profit of approximately
HK$1.91 million (2016: a profit of approximately
HK$13.27 million).

Securities trading and investment business

The revenue generated from the operation in securities
trading and investment for the reporting year was
approximately HK$18.53 million (2016: negative revenue
approximately HK$122.33 million) and its segmental result
reflected a gain of approximately HK$18.53 million (2016:
loss of approximately HK$122.64 million).

. 1 2 Lamtex Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Loan financing services business

Revenue of approximately HK$35.82 million was generated
from the Group’s loan financing services business for the
reporting period (2016: approximately HK$9.71 million)
and its segmental result recorded a profit of approximately
HK$21.03 million (2016: approximately HK$0.83 million).

Securities brokerage and provision of securities margin
finance business

Revenue of approximately HK$3.28 million was generated
from the Group’s stock broking business for the reporting
period (2016: approximately HK$2.57 million) and its
segmental result suffered a loss of approximately HK$4.60
million (2016: loss of approximately HK$3.33 million).

Trading and manufacturing of electronic products business
Revenue of approximately HK$62.25 million was generated
from the Group’s electronic trading business for the
reporting period (2016: no such segment) and its segment
result recorded a profit of approximately HK$2.79 million
(2016: no such segment).

All other segments business

Revenue of approximately HK$0.08 million was generated
from other segments business (2016: approximately
HK$5.82 million) and segmental result suffered a loss of
HK$0.18 million (2016: loss of approximately HK$0.09
million).

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by approximately HK$50.76 million
(10.4 times of 2016), from approximately HK$5.40 million
for 2016 to approximately HK$56.16 million for 2017.
The increase was driven by the increase in revenue in
2017 for the newly acquired business in the trading and
manufacturing of electronic products segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE M AT

Other Income

The Group’s other income for the reporting year slightly
decreased to approximately HK$0.58 million from
approximately HK$0.63 million in year 2016.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the reporting
year decreased to approximately HK$33.82 million from
approximately HK$35.66 million in the year 2016. Such
decrease was mainly due to decrease in rent and rates as
compared to 2016.

Share-based Payments
No share-based payments of the Group was recorded for
the reporting year (2016: approximately HK$8.35 million).

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for the reporting year was
HK$3.39 million (2016: nil). This was mainly the interest
paid on outstanding convertible bonds.

\ 14 Lamtex Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Profit for the Year and Earnings per Share

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the reporting year was approximately HK$28.34 million
(2016: a loss of approximately HK$138.29 million). Such
change was mainly due to (i) fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$18.53 million; and (ii) the profit derived from loan
financing services of approximately HK$21.03 million. Basic
earnings per share of the Group was approximately HK3.03
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: approximately loss per share HK19.65 cents) while
diluted earnings per share was approximately HK2.13 cents
(2016: basic diluted loss per share approximately HK19.65
cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MAJOR EVENTS

During the year, the businesses and operations of the
Group were mainly on securities trading and investment,
securities brokerage and provision of securities margin
finance, property investment, loan financing services and
trading and manufacturing of electronic products.

The Group’s consolidated net profit for the year was
approximately HK$28.34 million (2016: net loss of
approximately HK$138.29 million). The consolidated
net assets of the Group increased from approximately
HK$341.32 million as at 31 December 2016 to
approximately HK$474.29 million as at 31 December
2017. The consolidated net profit was mainly attributable
to (i) fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$18.53 million;
and (ii) profit derived from loan financing services of
approximately HK$21.03 million.
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On 19 January 2017, the Company completed the issue of
convertible bonds in principal amount ofHK$200,000,000
pursuant to the specific mandate granted to the directors
of the Company at the special general meeting held on
9 January 2017 at a conversion price of HK$0.285 each.
Details of the intended/actual use of proceeds of the
subscription is set at section headed “use of proceeds” of
this report.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 18 April 2017 entered
into between a subsidiary of the Company, Eminent
Alliance Investments Limited (“Eminent Alliance”) and
an independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
Alliance disposed of its entire interest in a subsidiary,
Cityray Investments Limited (the “Disposed Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Disposal
Group”) to the Purchaser at a cash consideration of
HK$38,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The disposal was
completed in May 2017 and recorded a gain of HK$3.19
million. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company published on 19 April 2017.

Eminent

In August 2017, the acquisition of Praise Perfection
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which engaged in trading and
manufacturing of electronic products at a consideration of
HK$2 million was completed.

Towards year end, to further diversify our Group’s
business, Meteor Investment (H.K.) Limited was acquired
at a consideration of HK$7.56 million was completed in
November 2017, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability. Such acquisition will initially serve as
a platform to develop business in relation to tourism and
entertainment alike.
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During 2017, due to the positive change in global
economic atmosphere, the Group has prudently involved
in the securities investment. The Group considers that the
prospects in respect of the shares still held for trading
investments are healthy. The Board will closely monitor
the performance progress of the investment portfolio from
time to time.

Property investment business

The segmental profit of approximately HK$1.91 million
was mainly due to the rental income from investment
properties (2016: profit of approximately HK$13.27
million). Such a decrease was due to the absence of a fair
value gain on investment properties.

Securities trading and investment business

During the reporting year, a revenue of approximately
HK$18.53 million was recorded from the operation of
investments in securities (2016: a negative revenue of
approximately HK$122.33 million). This represented mainly
the fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The segmental profit of approximately
HK$18.53 million was mainly due to the fair value gain on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

N—T—+ & BREEKERS I
) z,gﬁ.%@iﬁg%éﬁi.ﬁ#ﬁxé{ rE
ERANABEEERENRND 2Bl 74
B - ZFef8 T REIERKEASHE
WEE o

MEREER

S ¥BE 451,910,000 L E2HP
WEMERERA(ZE—NF : HMNE
13,270,000%70) * B TR EY
FEHFBRAFERE -

%%EE&EE%&

RAREFEN BHFEREEBEEZK
AB#118,530 ooo,%rc(_7 NE B
A#7122,330,000/87L) - &£ ERIZAF

Efft \ExHemEEATERE - 58
i Al #718,530,000 8 7 F ZEHRILAFE
SFABENEREERFEREFTEH

wmEmpaRAT 20174% 17 r



Information on the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which amounted to approximately
HK$81.21 million as at 31 December 2017 as below:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Percentage of
shareholding in
the investee

ERAAEER T —+F+_A=+—
BEAFEFTAEGZZEZHEEY
81,208,000 8 L2 ER AT

Percentage to net
Market value as at  assets value of the

Number of shares ~ company as at 31 December 2017 Group as at
held as at 31 December 2017 RZF-tE 31 December 2017
Name of stock 31 December 2017 RZZE-tE  Investmentcost ~ t=A=t-H RZB-t%
(Stock code) R=8-t§  tZB=t-H RERK ZhE  tZR=t-A
R Principal business +=p=1-A WEREAT  (WKSmilion)  (HKS'milion) — HAEEEE
(REHRE) IERH FRB#A LRERAML (RE%7m) (RE%7m) FECADY
KSL Holdings Limited  Engineering consulting; contracting; 5,404,000 1.31% 10.01 13.19 2.78%
(8170) project management
TRER &2 BEREE
Hing Ming Holdings ~ Construction; project planning; 12,360,000 3.09% 9.78 16.68 3.52%
Limited (8425) design and customisation; delivery
of equipment to construction
site; installation and inspection;
onsite customer support to;
and disassembly and delivery of
equipment
REERARRA RS RARE FtREH B
(8425) GHERE  TRRBE BREP
XERFEREREHENE
Xi'an Haitiantian Sales of information system and 6,607,000 0.43% 42.89 5134 10.82%

Holdings Company
Limited (8227)
EZBAREERN
BRAR(8227)

sales of agricultural products
identified by CODM
HEAMMRARRAETEZER
REBAZRER
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Information on the performance of the Group’s financial
assets during the year ended 31 December 2017 as below:

BERAKE#HE_F

—tF+ZA=1—

ALFEESMEENKRZEMFINWT

Fair value changes
for the year ended
31 December 2017

Dividend received
for the year ended
31 December 2017

BE-ZE-—tFZ BE-ZE—+tF
Name of stock +ZA=+—HL +t=ZA=+—HBL1t
(Stock code) FEZAVEEZY FEZEWRE
i (HK$ million) (HK$)
(R RR) (B8#ExT) (ET)
KSL Holdings Limited (8170) 3.18 Nil
i
Hing Ming Holdings Limited (8425) 6.90 Nil
HLSE IR B R A A (8425) =
Xi'an Haitiantian Holdings Company Limited (8227) 8.45 Nil
ARBRREERN AR LA (8227) i
Hong Kong saw a march in local market with the Hang BAEAR_E—LtFRBAMTSFEL

Seng Index (“HSI”) and the Hang Seng China Enterprises
Index (“HSCEI") rising 36.0% and 24.6% respectively in
2017. Strong performance in local market was largely
attributable to rallies in leading global markets and the
rebound of the Mainland market on a stabilized economy
and strong corporate earnings. Persisting and strong
southbound inflows through Stock Connect also partly
supported the local market.

The Board envisages that the performance of the equities
(and thus their values) will be susceptible to external
factors. In order to mitigate possible financial risks related
to the equities, the Group will further review the Group’s
investment portfolio and closely monitor the performance
of the listed securities from time to time.
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The Group has established and performed prudent
trading strategy with respect to its financial investments
and diversified its investments among and within the
listed shares of HKEX listed companies in engineering,
contracting, consultation, sales of construction related
products and construction industries. The Group holds an
optimistic view of future performance of its investments
which are expected to benefit from the positive
development in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The
Group acquired most of such shares at their relatively
lower trading prices during the reporting year therefore
resulted in investment gains for the period. The Group
will continue to adopt a prudent investing practice and
selectively invest in quality shares to obtain a steady return
to our shareholders.

Loan financing services business

The segmental profit of approximately HK$21.03 million
was recorded (2016: profit of approximately HK$0.83
million).

Securities brokerage and provision of securities
margin finance business

The segmental loss of approximately HK$4.60 million was
recorded (2016: loss of approximately HK$3.33 million).
This was mainly due to business faced a lot of competitions
and some related business plans not well on track.
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Trading and manufacturing of electronic products
business

During the reporting year, a revenue of approximately
HK$62.25 million was recorded (2016: no such segment).
The segmental profit of approximately HK$2.79 million
was recorded (2016: no such segment). This was a newly
setup business in 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank and cash
balances was approximately HK$63.79 million (2016:
approximately HK$41.43 million), representing an increase
of 53.97%. There was no bank and other borrowings as at
31 December 2016 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 7.41 times (2016: 6.09 times)
and the net current assets amounted to approximately
HK$477.47 million (2016: approximately HK$218.38
million).

SHARE OPTION

The board of directors (the “Directors”) of Lamtex
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (the “Board”) hereby
announces that on 20 December 2016, the Company has
granted share options (the “Options”) under its share
option scheme adopted on 25 May 2012 to certain eligible
grantees (the “Grantees”), which, subject to acceptance by
the Grantees, will enable the Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 58,120,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Share(s)”) of US$0.005 each in the share capital of
the Company as stated in the announcement dated 20
December 2016.
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Among the 58,120,000 Options granted, 29,290,000

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Ui

RN H 258,120,000 B8 IR #E E F -

Options were exercised and 6,000,000 Options were A ¥R & 5 A - 29,290,000 {7 B A% #E & 17

lapsed during the reporting year, while the remaining of
22,830,000 Options have not yet been exercised as at 31

December 2017 with details as follows: 22,830,000 17 BB IR #E 2 ¥ 15

Option shares

- 6,000,000 FE IR E XK R FT
—tF+Z A=+t —BHHEKRTEZHT

LU

Percentage of
the Company's
issued share

granted capital (%)
Position gtz MEARARSEBIT
EEnE B BRERSGD REANEDL(%)
Mr. Wu Xiaolin Executive Director 8,300,000 0.71%
REMEL HITESF
Mr. Wen Wenfeng Executive Director (resigned with 8,300,000 0.71%
effect from 5 February 2018)
B FRAE WITEE(R_T—N\F
ZAARAET)
Mr. Wen Yongwen Subsidiary’s vice president 5,000,000 0.43%
JRIK X ST EpENG o= FGE S
Mr. Tse Long Independent Non-Executive Director 410,000 0.03%
AR A B EMITEF
Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke, Hoi Lam Independent Non-Executive Director 410,000 0.03%
B G pR1E £+ BUFEHTES
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin Independent Non-Executive Director 410,000 0.03%
BEMEL B IFITES
22,830,000 1.94%
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Grantees is a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associate(s) (as defined
in the Listing Rules).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the reporting year, 29,290,000 shares were issued
by exercise of share options. In addition, there were in
total 308,771,929 convertible bonds converted into shares
from the Two-year 2% Coupon Convertible Bonds issued
on 19 January 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the number
of the Company's issued shares was 1,174,976,579 shares.

Save as the disclosure above, there was no changes in
the capital structure of the Company during the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$112
million. The Group’s gearing ratio calculated on the basis
of convertible bonds was HK$112 million (31 December
2016: Nil) and total equity of approximately HK$474.29
million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$341.32
million), was 23.61% (31 December 2016: zero).

MATERIAL CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group is not aware of any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting year, the Group had not
pledged any assets (2016: Nil).
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

There has been no significant change in the Group’s
policy in terms of exchange rate exposure. The Group
operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Most of
the transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The exchange rate of RMB
against HK$ is relatively stable. Hence, the Group neither
anticipates any significant exchange risk exposure nor has
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
of the Group will monitor foreign exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately
945 (2016: approximately 45) full time management,
administrative and operation staff in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages
with attractive discretionary bonus to employees. The
Group regularly reviews its remuneration packages in light
of the overall development of the Group as well as the
market conditions. In addition, the Group has adopted
a share option scheme for eligible employees (including
directors) to provide incentives to those with outstanding
performance and contribution to the Group.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

SEERERITHRABZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wen lJialong “Mr. Wen"”, aged 48, is an executive
director of the Company who joined us on 17 July, 2017.
Mr. Wen is a Deputy to the 12th Guangdong Provincial
People’s Congress (BEREF T _EARREXKRER
&), the President of the Guangdong Small Commodity
Association (ERE /) Emipee ), the Vice President
of Shenzhen Enterprise Confederation (ZEIIT{ERS
@ E|€ K), the Vice Chairman of the Maoming Federation
of Industry and Commerce ((X&M IEEHEE (4R
@) B|IE) and the President of the Shenzhen Small
Commodity Association (FIIT/\ERHEE K). He is also
the President (Starlight) of Elderly Association, Shenzhen
CEITEEHREENXEER). He is an honorary fellow of
the Oxford Centre for Leadership and Society of Business
Practitioners of England and an honorary doctor of the
International American University. Mr. Wen has extensive
experience in project running and capital operations and is
an experienced entrepreneur. He is currently the director
of Cancare Group (H.K.) Limited and Cancare China
Merchants Group (HK) Limited and the vice-chairman of
3D-GOLD Enterprises Development (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.
and 3D-GOLD Jewellery Company Limited, subsidiaries
of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he
also has over 15 years of experience in the production of
wires and cables, jacks and connectors used in electronic,
automobile and computer products and about 2 years of
experience in running small commodity trading centre for a
variety of products including household appliances, fashion
accessories, gifts and watches and jewellery in Shenzhen,
PRC.
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Mr. Wen was an executive director of Green International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2700), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited until his resignation in January 2014. Mr. Wen
was a Chairman and executive director of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), a company
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited until his resignation in May 2015. Mr. Wen
was a Chairman and executive director of Kaisa Health
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Mega Medical
Technology Limited) (stock code: 876), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited until his resignation in June 2015.

Mr. Wen is the uncle of Mr. Wu Xiaolin, the Company’s
executive director.

Mr. Wu Xiaolin “Mr. Wu”, aged 36, is an executive
director, the chairman of Investment and Management
Committee and a member of each of Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wu
joined us on 16 June 2015. Mr. Wu graduated from
Huaibei Normal University with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Information and Computer Science. Mr. Wu
is currently serving as the legal representative and the
general manager of FIIMXEE/ NEERER QA
and a supervisor of the Shenzhen Cancare Commercial
Development Company Limited CRIITEEEREERE
ARAR]). Mr. Wu is an executive director of Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Also, Mr. Wu was an executive
director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Mega Medical Technology Limited) (stock code:
876), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until his resignation in
February 2017.

Mr. Wu is the nephew of Mr. Wen Jialong, the Company’s
executive director and chairman.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lung Chee Ming George “Mr. Lung”, aged 61,
joined us on 31 July, 2015, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Lung is a member of the National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(PEARBAHEEH#TEEES) and Justice of the
Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr.
Lung joined Manulife (International) Limited in 1990, and
has achieved outstanding results. He currently serves as the
Executive Regional Director and leads a team of over 1000
insurance agents and financial planners. Actively involved
in community services, Mr. Lung was amongst one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1995
and was the chairman of The Outstanding Young Persons
Association in 2003 to 2004. Mr. Lung was awarded
the Medal of Honour and Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in 2001 and 2014. Furthermore, Mr. Lung is a Committee
Member of the Board of Governors of Hong Kong Shue Yan
University, a Member of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear
Power Station/Lingao Nuclear Power Station, Nuclear Safety
Consultative Committee, the Founding Chairman of Hong
Kong Youth Exchange Promotion United Association,a
Chairperson of “Passing on the Torch” National Education
Activity Series of Education Bureau and executive vice
chairman and secretary general of Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organisations. Mr. Lung is
currently an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong International Construction Investment Management
Group Co., Limited (Formerly known as Tysan Holdings
Limited)(stock code: 687). He was an independent non-
executive director of China Investment Development Limited
(stock code: 204) until his resignation in May 2012. He
was an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Mega Medical
Technology Limited) (stock code: 876) until his retirement in
June 2015. He was an independent non-executive director
of China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (Formerly known
as Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited)
(stock code: 8047) until his resignation in July 2015.
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Mr. Liu Zhanging “Mr. Liu”, aged 52, is a non-executive
director of the Company who joined us on 1 September,
2017. Mr. Liu is currently the managing partner of k3=
AR EIREAR AT, the Vice President of the China
Association of Private Equity and the Vice Chairman of
the Council of the Collaborative Innovation Center for
Distant water Fisheries. He graduated from the Zhanjiang
Ocean University (now the Guangdong Ocean University)
with a bachelor’'s degree in 1986, completed the EMBA
Programme in the China Europe International Business
School in 2006 and the Global CEO Programme in the
China Europe International Business School in 2012. Mr.
Liu had worked in the China National Fisheries Corp.
for 30 years and was the Chairman of the Board of the
China National Fisheries Corp. He possesses extensive
management and business management experience.
During that period, he also served as the director of the
second session of the Board of the Guangdong Ocean
University and the Vice President of the China Association
of Agricultural Leading Enterprises.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam “Dr. Loke”, aged 68, an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. He
has over 40 years’ experience in accounting and auditing
for private and public companies, financial consultancy
and corporate management. He holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree from Universiti Teknologi
Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from University of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales; The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He serves as an independent non-executive director of
Forebase International Holdings Limited (stock code:
2310), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited (stock code: 3626),Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 2882),V1 Group Limited
(stock code: 82), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code:
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SEERERITHRABZERE

1005), China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 39), China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited (stock code: 445), SCUD Group Limited (stock
code: 1399), Zhong An Real Estate Limited (stock code:
672), Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (stock code:
882), China Household Holdings Limited (stock code: 692),
Chiho Environmental Group Limited (formerly known as
“Chiho-Tiande Group Limited”) (stock code: 976) and
Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (stock code: 1619). He
was an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Mega Medical
Technology Limited) (stock code: 876) until his resignation
in January 2017 and the company secretary of Minth
Group Limited (stock code: 425) until his resignation in
February 2018. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Winfair Investment Company Limited (stock
code: 287) until his resignation in April 2018, which are
all companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Tse Long “Mr. Tse”, aged 61, joined us on 28 July
2015, is the member of the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tse graduated from the Guangzhou Jinan
University in 2012 with a diploma in Social Work. He is
the owner of Guangdong Xingda Transport Company (&
REEER A F]) and Teem China Development Limited,
and a director of Allied Treasure Development Limited.
Apart from personal business, Mr. Tse has engaged in
various social commitments. From 2012 till now, Mr. Tse
is the Chairman of Hong Kong Guangdong Transportation
Association and the Hong Kong Council Convenor of the
Guangdong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association.
Since 2006, he has been the Deputy Secretary-General
of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations.
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Mr. Zeng Zhaolin “Mr. Zeng”, aged 73, joined us
on 16 June 2015, is the chairman of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and a member
of each of Investment and Management Committee and
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng holds a
Higher Diploma in Chinese Language from South China
Normal University (ZEFAIEEEFE), and attended the
"Executive Master of Business Administration Course
Seminars” organised by the Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan
(University) College (1L K228 E07). Mr. Zeng is the
vice president of the Shenzhen Cancare Group (&3l
EZEEZEE) and the vice chairman of the Shenzhen
Cancare Group's Advisory Board (FIITMEEEETEE
EEEEZE=). In 1998, Mr. Zeng, in the capacity as the
General Office director (¥ A=+ 1) of the Guangdong
Provincial Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“GPCPPCC") (XA %), was assigned
by the GPCPPCC to station at the then Guangdong
Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (B)81b% (£8) AREAQ
a]) to act as a liaison between the GPCPPCC, the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government, other
related groups and associations in Hong Kong. In 1999,
Mr. Zeng was also appointed as the assistant inspector
for the General Office of the GPCPPCC. Mr. Zeng was
appointed as the Public Relations Deputy Director (7330
&) in 1999 and General Affairs Department Deputy
director (#87%EF &30 &) in 2003 of the Federation of Hong
Kong-Guangdong Community (BBEREZAE). He
was responsible for fostering relationships with the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government and other
groups and associations in Hong Kong. Mr. Zeng is also a
senior researcher of the China Asia-Pacific Research Centre
for Economic Development (A1 25 A& 225 R AT IC L))
and visiting researcher of the expert committee of the
China Traditional Culture Institute University (F BB £ K
E2). Mr. Zeng was an independent non-executive director
of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Mega Medical Technology Limited) (stock code: 876) until
his retirement in June 2015.
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SENIOR EXECUTIVE
Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley “Ms. Hui”, is the company
secretary of the Group. Ms. Hui joined us on 16 June 2015.

Ms. Hui is a practicing accountant in Hong Kong and is
currently a director of a CPA firm and a securities firm.
She is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Mr. Wong Man Keung “Mr. Wong”, aged 50, is
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 28 November 2017. Mr. Wong is a
member of Certified Management Accountants of
Australia. He has over 25 years of experience in direct
investment, commercial banking and manufacturing in
the PRC. He has also served as the senior management
member of various light and heavy manufacturing
companies based in the PRC and overseen the finance
and the production departments. Prior to that, he worked
in Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd for approximately 15
years, focus on credit department. And he was appointed
as an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
“Green International Holdings Ltd (stock code: 2700)" in
November 2011 and was appointed as Acting Chairman
of the Board from November 2012 to September 2013. He
resigned as an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of Green International Holdings Ltd in January
2017.

BRTHAR
HESZT (ML) AAREATRE
N=F—REAATARMAKAR -

MHRETRBFAAXGHE B —H#RE
ST —HEFTZIEZ - BREE
SR RS B ARSFAAE - RE
FAMERITBRABRE  UREBBRF

WMELRGZEXEE -

BEXRBEEIERE] SO BZER
ARRMITRER BT —tF+— A
“HNBEEM - mAERBRMNEE S
AR E - BRPEBERKRE  BERTR
HRETERTERBA25FERE - RITER
ZHRBMBUNTEIETENETESE
NRAEESREEBERBL EEWH KL
ERRFT o R Z AT - B EBRBBERT (F
B)BRARMI5E - BENEERM - ®
R-T——F+ - AEZERBMHERE
AR AR (ORI : 2700) ITES
ROBEE IR —_T——F+—AE=
E-—=FNABRZEREFTSERLIRE -
R —_F—tF— ARtEBEMBEERIERE
[RARINMITE FRITHABE B -

EERERAR 201754 31 r



EERSRITHAS 2 EE

Mr. Wong has entered into a service contract with the
Company for acting as the Chief Executive Officer, which
can be terminated (i) by the Company by giving not less
than 1 month’s prior notice in writing to Mr. Wong, or
(ii) by Mr. Wong by giving not less than 3 months’ prior
notice in writing to the Company. Mr. Wong is entitled
to a remuneration of HK$780,000 per annum and a
discretionary year end performance linked bonus as
determined by the Board with reference to his position,
his level of responsibilities, remuneration policy of the
Company and the prevailing market conditions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board considers that good corporate governance
of the Company is crucial to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company and to enhance the
performance of the Group. The Board and management
of the Company are committed to enhancing corporate
governance standard, in compliance with all relevant code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “"Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2017, complied with the relevant code provisions of the
Code (“Code Provisions”), save for the deviations disclosed
below in this report.

1. THE BOARD

The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprised two executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The profile of
all Directors are set out on pages 25 to 32, where
relationship among members of the Board (including
financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship(s), if any) are also disclosed.

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions of the Company in
accordance with the Code, including determining
the Group’s corporate governance policies, and
reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance
practices of the Group.
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The Board is responsible for the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective
of enhancing shareholders value and presenting a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in the annual and interim reports, and of other
inside information announcements and accounting
policies, and reports to regulators any information
required to be disclosed pursuant to the relevant
statutory requirements.

The Board has fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibility towards the Company and the Group.
Other responsibilities include, formulation of
the Group’s overall strategy and policies, setting
corporate and management targets and key
operational initiatives, monitoring and control of
operational and financial performance, and approval
of budgets and major capital expenditures, major
investments, material acquisitions and disposals
of assets, corporate or financial restructuring,
significant operational, financial and management
matters.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of the
business of the Group to the management of the
relevant principal subsidiaries and certain specific
responsibilities to audit committee, remuneration
committee, nomination committee and the
Investment and Management Committee (the
“IMC"). These committees have specific functions
and authority to examine issues and report to the
Board with their recommendations (if appropriate).
The final decision rests with the Board, unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of
the relevant committee.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance cover for liabilities in respect of legal
actions against Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) provides the Directors with updates on
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. Any Director
may request the Company Secretary to arrange for
independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to assist the Directors to effectively
discharge their duties to the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the
important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has to provide an annual confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company. The
Board considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance
and regulatory matters. There is an established
procedure for Directors to obtain independent advice
where necessary at the expense of the Company in
discharging of their duties to the Company.
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The Board meets at least four times each year to
review the overall strategy and to monitor the
operation as well as the financial performance of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Board held 23 regular meetings. Additional
meetings may be convened to approve any notifiable
transaction and shares issuance. Notice of at least
fourteen days is served for regular board meetings.
Reasonable notice would be given for all other
special board meetings which are not held regularly.
The chairman of the Board is primarily responsible
for drawing up and approving the agenda for each
board meetings in consultation with all Directors
and ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meetings. Agenda and
accompanying board papers in respect of board
meetings are sent out in full to all Directors within
a reasonable time before the date of every board
meetings to allow them to review these documents
in advance. Minutes of all board meetings,
the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee, the audit committee and the IMC are
kept by the Company Secretary and the Directors
may inspect these minutes at any time during office
hours upon giving reasonable notice. Minutes of all
board meetings, and meetings of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee, the audit
committee and the IMC, have recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the
board committees, including any concerns raised
by Directors or dissenting view expressed. Draft
and final versions of these minutes were sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively,
normally within 10 days after the relevant meeting
was held.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Board held meetings to deal with, inter alia, the
following matters regarding corporate governance:

reviewed the corporate governance practices;

- reviewed and monitored the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

- reviewed and monitored the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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The following is the attendance record of each Director at

TREJFRNEBREZTHFE

N
SR

the Board meetings held during the year: FOEE
Attendance of
Board meeting
in person
FEHEESS
Name of Board member EEgRERE BREZRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wen Jialong (Chairman) BRBESLAE (F)E)
(appointed as non-executive director with (RZE—tF LA TEHEZE
effect from 17 July 2017 and redesignated RIFPTESEN T —tF
as executive director with effect NA—BRAEARITES)
from 1 September 2017) 7/12
Mr. Wu Xiaolin REEMFELE 23/23
Mr. Wen Wenfeng N R E 23/23
(resigned with effect from 5 February 2018) (R=ZE—N\F=-_AAHET)
Ms. Shen Jing LR+
(resigned with effect from 19 April 2017) (RZZE—tFMHATHLHEHE) 4/7
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George BEFRRLE 19/23
Mr. Ye WeiMing R
(resigned with effect from 17 July 2017) (RZZE—tFLATERAET) 10/10
Mr. Liu Zhanging 2EBFERE
(appointed with effect (RZZE—tFNHA—BEZF)
from 1 September 2017) 717
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEEM L 23/23
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam g MIB L 22/23
Mr. Tse Long AR HE 22/23
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The following is the attendance record of each Director
at the general meetings of the Company held during the

year:

Name of Board member

G2

TERHINFABREFTHEARRBRRAK

Attendance of
general meeting

in person

BEHE

BRERAEZRH

Executive Directors
Mr. Wen Jialong (Chairman)

(appointed as non-executive director with
effect from 17 July 2017 and redesignated
as executive director with effect
from 1 September 2017)

Mr. Wu Xiaolin
Mr. Wen Wenfeng

(resigned with effect from 5 February 2018)
Ms. Shen Jing

(resigned with effect from 19 April 2017)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George
Mr. Ye WeiMing
(resigned with effect from 17 July 2017)
Mr. Liu Zhanging
(appointed with effect
from 1 September 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

Mr. Tse Long

BITES
BERBERE (FE)

(RZZ—tFLA+LHEZE

RIFRTEEMN —_T—LF
NA—BRERAITES)

RS

BXFRE
(R=F—)\E=AEAB)

i S
(R=F—tFMA+ARBE)

FHTES

BETHEE

RE#HTE
(RZT—tF LA +LHEHE)

BEBRE
(RZZT—tFNA—REZME)

BAFITES
LEMETLE
BEgMIB L
MOR £
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Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal Board
members, should, among other things, attend general
meetings of the Company. Due to other important business
engagements at the relevant time, not all independent non-
executive director and non-executive director attended the
special general meeting held on 9 January 2017 and the
annual general meeting held on 19 May 2017.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Wen Jialong was
appointed as the chairman of the Company on 17 July
2017 and Mr. Wu Xiaolin was the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company until Mr. Wong Man Keung took up the
position in place of Mr. Wu Xiaolin with effect from 28
November 2017 (“CEQ"). The CEO, is responsible for
managing and smoothing the business operation of the
Group while Mr. Wen, as the chairman of the Company,
is responsible for leading the Board in overall strategic
development of the Group.

The Board believes that the roles of chairman and chief
executive performed by Mr. Wen Jialong and CEO can
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allow for more effective and efficient business
planning and decisions.

The Board considers the above arrangement to be
appropriate for the Company as it can preserve the
consistent leadership culture of the Company. The
Board believes that a balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals,
non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors (the “INEDs").

including two
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The number of INEDs throughout the year ended 31
December 2017 has met the minimum requirement of
the Listing Rules and represented at least one-third of the
total Board members. Further, at least one of the INEDs
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an
annual written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
reviewed their independence based on such confirmation
and considers all of them remaining independent.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting at least once every three years
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following two
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wen Jialong
Mr. Wu Xiaolin

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George
Mr. Liu Zhanging

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

Mr. Tse Long

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin
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All independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified as such in all of the Company’s corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Company adopted the board diversity policy on 28 August
2013. The policy set out that the nomination committee
of the Company reviews and assesses the composition
of the Board, makes recommendations to the Board on
appointment of new directors of the Company, conduct
of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board in
order to achieve the objective of the board diversity policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the diversity of
the Board and will review the board diversity policy from
time to time to ensure that the policy will be implemented
effectively.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction
package containing all key legal and Listing Rules’
requirements as well as guidelines on the responsibilities
and obligations to be observed by a director. The package
will also include the latest published financial reports of
the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.
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The Company also continuously updates Directors on
the latest developments regarding listing rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their
awareness of best corporate governance practices.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any new
Director appointed by the Board, whether to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board, is subject
to retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next
following general meeting of the Company following his/
her appointment. At every annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
retire from office and being eligible for re-election.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders at annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the
Board has established the following committees with
defined terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2017, the Company’s Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, Mr. Tse Long
and Mr. Zeng Zhaolin. Dr Loke Yu alias loke Hoi Lam was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.
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The audit committee oversees the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control system
of the Company. The management of the Company is
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements while the external auditor is responsible for

ERZESEEARA 2 BERRER -
AR EERALEERG c RARIEIERE
BEREANEE 2 07K M INE i S RD
AIBEERAEE M BHRE BZEE
eXERWHESERTHEAMBILE

:I

auditing the Group's financial statements. Members BB HmEK  ERARRI U BEERFEA
of the audit committee assist the Board in fulfilling its HMERRER ERLTEENBTNRITERX
responsibilities by providing an independent review of the CEEeREARERRRNESSRIAE -
financial statements, supervising the Company’s system

of financial reporting and internal control. The audit

committee presents a report to the Board on its findings

after each audit committee meeting.

The written terms of reference, which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, are regularly
reviewed and was updated by the Board to comply with
Code Provision C.3.3 of the Code in 2017. The Audit
Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2017. The attendance of each member is set out
as follows:

RZZTE—+tF EF5ecHEHNLEHNE
MEZZEERHNERENETERES
B LWBFTFREXECI3IF -HET
—+tF+_A=1+—HILFE BFEZEE
FERITMAGHE - SKEZHEXNAT -

Number of
meetings
attended

Name of audit committee member ENZEGRERE HEGRRY
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (Chairman) FEgMEL (&) 212
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEMEE 212
Mr. Tse Long HhOR 212
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The audit committee reviewed and discussed with the
management and independent external auditor the 2017
consolidated financial statements included in this report.
In this regard, the audit committee held discussions with
management with regard to new or changes in accounting
policies that had been applied, and significant judgments
of the management which affected the Group’s financial
statements. The audit committee received reports and
met with the external auditor to discuss the general
scope of their audit work, including the impact of new or
changes in accounting policies that had been applied and
their assessment of the Group’s internal controls. Based
on these review and discussions, and the report of the
external auditor, the audit committee recommended the
Board to approve the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

During the year, the audit committee also reviewed the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 and recommended the
Board to approve the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.

The members of the audit committee considered the
appointment of external auditor, their audit fees and
recommended the Board to seek shareholders’ approval for
the re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as the
Group's external auditor for the year ending 31 December
2018.

EZZEeCERAEEEERINEEL
V%%ﬁﬁ$¢ﬁ%ﬁ2:§—t¢?F
MWK Bt BERERESREEE
MEERAZHAI RGBS BERANE
BEMEHARENBRRBUTELZE
RHEETIwm  BEREZESEREZR
AR E SR EINEZBEEH - SwmERK
BIHEZARHEE BREER X
RIERIBFTRRZE ﬁ&ﬁ“ﬁ$¢lw
EREE YR Z FFAA o AR bl MR
)Si?;zﬁ”ﬁl\ﬂ*’f?ﬁﬁﬂﬁZ#&i %’f?é/\aﬁ

EEZgHERBBE_T—+tF+_H
:+*E¢¢E255W%ﬁ§&ﬁ4&
BRI ES

RER BERZEeTEHEEZE T+
FRNAZTHLEANEA 2 REEZERE
BMBHRE TRBEFSHEBBZR
REZERGEVBERE

BEZZE@ZREDEBIMNERHEI 2 &
BEEEZHER YEZZEFES
IﬂxﬁﬁtEitﬂﬂﬂliﬁi;\ﬁr%%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REARAEBEBE_T-N\F+_A
:+*E¢¢E29l\ﬂﬁf§§5z€ﬂﬁ

HEERERAT 20175% 45 r



Corporate Governance Report

/\_Ll_fr/-\—\

1F = /El#&l:l

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
with terms consistent with the Code Provisions A.5.1 to
A.5.6. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee have included the duties as set out in the
relevant Code Provisions. As at 31 December 2017, the
nomination committee comprises three INEDs, and one
executive director namely Mr. Zeng Zhaolin. Dr. Loke Yu
alias Loke Hoi Lam, Mr. Tse Long and Mr. Wu Xiaolin.
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least
once a year. The Nomination Committee, among other
things, review the composition of the Board, consider the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors,
the retirement of directors and the resignation and the
appointment of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the
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year ended 31 December 2017. The attendance of each IRELZZE@CRITHAEHE SHREZH
member is set out as follows: BRI

Number of

meetings

Name of nomination attended

committee member REZEGHERS HEGRRY

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (Chairman) LEMEE(FE) 414

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam FEEMIEL 4/4

Mr. Tse Long HhOR 3/4

Mr. Wu Xiaolin REMEE 4/4
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
to deal with matters of remuneration and compensation
arrangement of Directors and senior management. The
written terms of reference of the remuneration committee
have included the duties as set out in the relevant Code
Provisions. As at 31 December 2017, the remuneration
committee comprises three INEDs and one executive director,
namely, Mr. Zeng Zhaolin, Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam,
Mr. Tse Long and Mr. Wen Wenfeng. Mr Zeng Zhaolin was
appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
follow the guidelines set out in the Code and it is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
shall meet at least once a year.

The Remuneration Committee meetings held four meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2017. The attendance
of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of
meetings
Name of remuneration attended
committee member FMEEERERE HESBRY
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (Chairman) LEMEE(FE) 414
Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam FEEMIEL 4/4
Mr. Tse Long HhOR 3/4
Mr. Wen Wenfeng BN FELE
(resigned on 5 February 2018) (RZE-N\E_ARHET) 4/4
Mr. Wu Xiaolin REMEE Not applicable
(appointed on 5 February 2018) (RZE-\F-ARREZA) NEA
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Investment and Management Committee

The Board established the IMC on 15 August 2013. As
at 31 December 2017, the IMC comprises two executive
Directors and two independent non-executive Directors
namely, Mr. Wen Wenfeng, Mr. Wu Xiaolin, Dr. Loke
Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam and Mr. Zeng Zhaolin. Mr. Wen
Wenfeng was the chairman of the IMC until his resignation
with effect from 5 February 2018. Mr Wu Xiaolin was
appointed as the Chairman of the IMC with effect from 5
February 2018.

The principal role and function of the IMC includes:
- act as a delegate for the Board generally;

- make decisions and resolutions, and to exercise all
powers of the Board on all matters of the Group
in relation to its daily operation and investment
activities; and

- make recommendations to the Board concerning
matters of corporate significance not otherwise dealt
by any other committees of the Board.

The IMC did not hold any meeting during the year ended
31 December 2016. The attendance of each member is set
out as follows:
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Number of
meetings
attended

Name of the IMC member REREBRZESHENE HESBRY
Mr. Wen Wenfeng (Chairman) BN ELE(LE) Not applicable
(resigned with effect from 5 February 2018) (R=ZE—-NF-AABET) NEFA
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin BEWLE Not applicable
T

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam EgmiE L Not applicable
NiE

Mr. Wu Xiaolin REMEAE Not applicable
(appointed as Chairman with effect (E’\_T NFZARA NER

from 5 February 2018) BZERTE)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The risk management process includes risk indentification,
risk evaluation, risk management and risk control and
review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks
associated with any activity, function or process within its
scope of responsibility and authority.

The Group has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, including areas covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management functions.
The systems are implemented to minimise the risk to which
the Group is exposed and is used as a management tool
for the day-to-day operation of business. The system can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function as
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and is currently of the view
that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. The situation will be
reviewed from time to time.

The Group has engaged external professional consultant to
conduct independent internal control review for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
considered the Group’s risk management and internal
control system as adequate and effective and that the
Company has complied with the code provisions on
internal control of the Code.

PERFORMANCE OF INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

The Company has adopted the rules and procedures on
INEDs" work. The Company has three INEDs, representing
more than one-third of the total number of the Directors
as required under the Listing Rules. The INEDs are
professionals with extensive experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business management. Dr. Loke
Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam has appropriate accounting and
financial experience. The INEDs do not hold other positions
in the Company other than being members of the board
committees.

During the reporting period, the INEDs had no objections
to the resolutions made by the Board.

During the year, the INEDs earnestly and diligently
performed their duties in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Bye-laws of the Company.
The INEDs actively attended board meetings during the
reporting period, and reviewed documents presented
by the Company. They also provided professional and
constructive advice on the Company’s major decisions.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
INEDs about their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the
INEDs are completely independent of the Company, its
substantial shareholders and its affiliates and comply fully
with the requirements concerning the INEDs under the
Listing Rules.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the
consolidated financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. They do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the content of the auditor’s report.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has
accepted the recommendation from the audit committee
on re-appointing Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as the
external auditor of the Group.

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor for the provision of services
are as follows:
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2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET

Audit services EIZIRTE
— Annual audit — FEEZ 815 720
Non-audit services IEFTAZ RS 153 230
968 950
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Group’s financial statements in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The responsibilities of the Directors are
to prepare the financial accounts for each financial
period which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. The Directors also acknowledge that
the publication of the financial statements should be
distributed to the shareholders of the Company in a timely
manner. In preparing the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors
are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out by the Stock
Exchange in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries to
all Directors, all Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealings as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s own code of conduct during the review year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

()

(ii)

Convening a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, any one
or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company
by mail at Room 1814-1815, 18/F, Star House, 3
Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do
so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders shall make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company
by mail at Room 1814-1815, 18/F, Star House,
3 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, specifying their shareholding information,
their contact details and the proposals they intend
to put forward at the general meetings regarding
any specified transaction/business, together with
supporting documents.
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(iii) Putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary by mail at Room 1814-1815, 18/F, Star
House, 3 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company Secretary forwards
communications relating to matters within the
Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business
matters to the IMC of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION

The Company is responsible for ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In order to fulfill this responsibility,
the Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
the investment community at large. The Company
is committed to continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors with the relevant information on its business
in a timely and accurate manner, subject to the relevant
regulatory requirements. In order to ensure effective,
clear and accurate communication with investors, all
corporate communications are arranged and handled by
the executive Directors and designated senior executives
according to established practices and procedures of the
Company.
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The Board uses annual general meetings and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet
and communicate with the shareholders. Registered
shareholders are notified by post for these general
meetings, and the notice of meeting contains the agenda
and the proposed resolutions. Any registered shareholder
is entitled to attend the annual and special general
meetings, provided that their shares have been recorded
in the register of shareholders. The Board also encourages
shareholders to participate in these general meetings to
maintain an on-going dialogue with the shareholders.

Extensive information about the Company’s activities is
provided in its interim and annual reports, which are sent
to shareholders, analysts and other interested parties.
The Company’'s news releases, announcements and
publications are circulated to all major news media in a
timely and accurate manner.

Separate resolutions will be proposed by the chairman of
the meeting in respect of each substantially separate issue
at the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM"). The chairman of the AGM, audit committee, the
nomination committee, remuneration committee and the
IMC will attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to
answer questions of shareholders.

EEgNARRAFTFRAEREMBRRERRNE
ERERFREEREBCETEEE - B
h%MﬂLEﬁWWthﬁﬁaLm’
EHEZEREBREZRABZR - F
ﬁﬁﬂk%ﬁﬁ%&f&%ﬂik?&%
RERNARE HREIEZRHVAEDLEER
%%%%%Wo%%@ﬁi@hﬁ/A
MR RS @ EA—HREBEIZ BB

FERTRR - DWEREMBEBEALZF
HRENFR AERERXRAEHNE
Ko RRml 2 #E %M - XERTYEE
5 N BRI (A P A E BT R AR 3N

EARRIEERRBAFRS ([REAFEKXR
g ReXFEHEREBERBLEL
JEEERRERAER RRBAFAEE
B -BRZLZEQXFE REZEEXFE -
YFNEZEeTRARERERZESXE
BHFEREERRAFRAE  RE LR
H&%}%FDEJ °

HEZRERAR 2017%% 55 r



Corporate Governance Report

/\_Ll_fr/-\—\

=S /El#&l:l

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley (“Ms
Hui”) as the company secretary of the Company from
an external secretarial services provider. Any Executive
Director of the Company will be the person to whom such
external service provider can contact with.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. The Company
Secretary provided her training records to the Company
indicating she took more than 15 hours of relevant
professional development by means of attending in-
house briefings, attending seminars and reading relevant
guideline materials.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY
During the year under review, there were no changes in
the Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-
laws. A copy of the latest version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which
includes a discussion of the uncertainties and opportunities
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during
the year, an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business and discussion on the relationships with
its stakeholders, can be found in the Executive Director’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
contained in this annual report. The review forms part
contained in this directors’ report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
rules and regulations and the impact of non-compliance
with such rules and regulations on the business. The Group
has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to
maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has complied,
to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 76.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
and share options during the year are set out in notes
31 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$3,487,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Please refer to Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
on page 79.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wen Jialong (Chairman)

(appointed as non-executive director with
effect from 17 July 2017 and redesignated
as executive director with effect
from 1 September 2017)

Mr. Wu Xiaolin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wen Wenfeng

(resigned with effect from 5 February 2018)
Ms. Shen Jing

(resigned with effect from 19 April 2017)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George
Mr. Ye WeiMing
(resigned with effect from 17 July 2017)
Mr. Liu Zhanging
(appointed with effect
from 1 September 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam

Mr. Tse Long
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wen Jialong (“Mr. Wen") has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 17 July
2017. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the
Byelaws. Mr. Wen is entitled to a director’s fee of HKO per
annum.

Mr. Wu Xiaolin (“Mr. Wu") has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 16 June
2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Mr. Wu is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$360,000
per annum and the Chief Executive Officer’'s salary of
HK$600,000 per annum which are determined by arm'’s
length negotiation between Mr. Wu and the Company and
with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Wen Wenfeng (“Mr. Wen") has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 31 July
2015 and has resigned with effect from 5 February 2018.
He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-election
by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws. Mr.
Wen Wenfeng is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$600,000
per annum which is determined by arm’s length
negotiation between Mr. Wen Wenfeng and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Ms. Shen Jing (“Ms. Shen”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 1 August
2016 and has resigned with effect from 19 April 2017.
She is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-election
by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws. Ms.
Shen is entitled to a director’'s fee of HK$600,000 per
annum which is determined by arm’s length negotiation
between Ms. Shen and the Company and with reference to
her duties and responsibilities.
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Mr. Lung Chee Ming George (“Mr. Lung”) has entered
into a service contract with the Company commencing
from 31 July 2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and/or re-election by general meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws. Mr. Lung is entitled to a director’s fee of
HK$360,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Mr. Lung and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Ye WeiMing (“Mr. Ye"”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 30 August
2016 and has resigned with effect from 17 July 2017. He
is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-election by
general meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws. Mr. Ye
is entitled to a director’'s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined by arm’s length negotiation between
Mr. Ye and the Company and with reference to his duties
and responsibilities.

Mr. Liu Zhanging (“Mr. Liu”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 1
September 2017. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and/or re-election by general meetings in accordance
with the Byelaws. Mr. Liu is entitled to a director’s fee of
HK$360,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Mr. Liu and the Company and
with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"”) has entered
into a service contract with the Company commencing
from 28 July 2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and/or re-election by general meetings in accordance
with the Bye-laws. Dr. Loke is entitled to a director’s fee
of HK$120,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Dr. Loke and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.
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Mr. Tse Long (“Mr. Tse”) has entered into a service
contract with the Company commencing from 28 July
2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/or re-
election by general meetings in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Mr. Tse is entitled to a director’s fee of HK$120,000
per annum which is determined by arm’s length
negotiation between Mr. Tse and the Company and with
reference to his duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Zeng Zhaolin (“Mr. Zeng") has entered into a
service contract with the Company commencing from 16
June 2015. He is subject to retirement by rotation and/
or re-election by general meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws. Mr. Zeng is entitled to a director’'s fee of
HK$120,000 per annum which is determined by arm’s
length negotiation between Mr. Zeng and the Company
and with reference to his duties and responsibilities.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

SHARE OPTION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted on 25 May 2012, whereby the Board may,
at its absolute discretion, grant options to any eligible
participants including directors and employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
Company has granted share options (the “Options”)
under Share Option Scheme to certain eligible grantees
(the “Grantees”), which, subject to acceptance by the
Grantees, will enable the Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 58,120,000 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Share(s)") of US$0.005 each in the share capital of
the Company as stated in the announcement dated 20
December 2016. Details of the Options and Share Option
Scheme were set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 15a, 29 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding companies
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares RROREBERDZFE
Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each of the Company RN B =A% E1E 0.005 E T H) @ A%
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
No. of interested capital of the
Name of director Capacity shares held Company
FisEEREEN EARARB T
EEpns 5% gy 4= BRANBAE DL
(Note 1)
(et 1)
Wen Jialong Interest of spouse 392,982,456 (note 2) 33.45%
eSS FiBiE s 392,982,456 (ffit2) 33.45%
Wen Wenfeng Beneficial owner 8,300,000 (note 3) 0.71%
(resigned with effect EnBEAA 8,300,000 (#/i#3) 0.71%
from 5 February 2018)
mXFE
(RZT—\FZAAH
BHT)
Wu Xiaolin Beneficial owner 8,300,000 (note 3) 0.71%
REEMR ERBEEA 8,300,000 (#:3) 0.71%
Lok Hoi Lam Beneficial owner 410,000 (note 3) 0.03%
PR BERBERA 410,000 (#f773) 0.03%
Tse Long Beneficial owner 410,000 (note 3) 0.03%
#R ERBEEA 410,000 (##:#3) 0.03%
Zeng Zhaolin Beneficial owner 410,000 (note 3) 0.03%
BEM BERBERA 410,000 (#73) 0.03%
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Notes:

(4)

The percentages were calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital 1,174,976,579 shares as at 31
December 2017.

The 392,982,456 shares are held by, China Force
Enterprises Inc., which is wholly owned by Glory Gate
International Limited. Glory Gate International Limited is
wholly owned by Legit Ability Limited, which in turn is
wholly owned by Ms. Shen Jing, the spouse of Mr. Wen
Jialong, an executive director of the Company.

Among which the respective interests in share arise from
the share options granted to the respective directors.

The letters “L” and “S" denote long position and short
position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,

or as

otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERKR

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positons WRZ-ZE—+E+=-_A=+—H REES
of persons other than a director or chief executive of MEAEIEMIE 336 I8 FE 2B R - T
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the AT (RARESHFETETHAERIN)
Company as recorded in the register maintained under  FAZNRQ &) A% {9 5k 8 B8 A% 19 A 78 A 4 %5 80K

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: B
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares REROREBRD 2HE
Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each of the Company N a1 AE 0.005 £ T2 il
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share
ordinary shares capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity held Company
EARARB T
RREE 28 5% g ERHE BREANBNBE DL
(Note 1)
(et 1)
China Force Enterprises Inc.  Beneficial owner 392,982,456 (note 2) 33.45%
ERBEEA 392,982,456 (f1i#2) 33.45%
Glory Gate International Interest of a controlled corporation 392,982,456 (note 2) 33.45%
Limited R EEER 392,982,456 (ffi#2) 33.45%
Legit Ability Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 392,982,456 (note 2) 33.45%
LB RS 392,982,456 (ffit2) 33.45%
Cheng Haiging Interest of a controlled corporation 175,464,000 (note 3) 14.93%
REE R EEER 175,464,000 (#1:£3) 14.93%
Rainbow Enterprise Holdings Beneficial owner 175,464,000 (note 3) 14.93%
Co., Limited ERBEEA 175,464,000 (#7171 3) 14.93%
GCL-Poly Energy Beneficial owner 299,498,421 (note 4) 25.49%
Holdings Limited EnBEAA 299,498,421 (f15t4) 25.49%
R EeRIER AR A E
Chan Chunsui Beneficial owner 173,443,508 14.76%
BRI ERBEA 173,443,508 14.76%
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EFERE
Notes:

(5

The percentages were calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital 1,174,976,579 shares as at 31 December
2017.

The 392,982,456 shares were held by China Force Enterprises
Inc., which was wholly owned by Glory Gate International
Limited. Glory Gate International Limited was wholly owned
by Legit Ability Limited, which in turn was wholly owned by
Ms. Shen Jing, the spouse of Mr. Wen lJialong, an executive
director of the Company.

The 175,464,000 shares were held by Rainbow Enterprise
Holding Co., Limited, which was wholly owned by Cheng
Haiging.

The 299,498,421 shares were held by GCL-Poly Energy
Holdings Limited, which was listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3800).

The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short
position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided, having
regard to their duties, responsibilities and contribution
to the Company, the prevailing market conditions, time
commitment and the desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted share
option schemes as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees, details of the schemes are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the percentages of purchases
and revenue for the year attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers’ purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are
as follows:

Purchase

—  The largest supplier 61%
—  Five largest suppliers combined 75%
Sales

—  The largest customer 33%
—  Five largest customers combined 65%

As far as the Directors are aware, no Directors of the
Company, their close associates or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the Directors’ knowledge owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
shareholding in the suppliers referred to the above as at 31
December 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALA AND GOVERNANCE
Further discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
our relationship with various stakeholders are covered by a
separate ESG Report which will be available at the Group’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange not later
than 3 months after the publication of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the applicable law of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors has interest in any business which
may compete with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this
report, permitted indemnity provisions were in force
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s articles of association
and in the Directors liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against such
Directors.
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EFRHE
AUDITOR

Following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”) as auditor of the Company on 7 December
2015, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited ("ZHONGHUI
ANDA") was appointed as the auditor of the Company
on the same day to fill in the vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
auditor of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited by
ZHONGHUI ANDA whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wu Xiaolin

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E S

;L

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
Lamtex Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Lamtex Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 76 to 170, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Refer to Notes 19 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group measured its investment properties and
convertible bonds at fair value with the changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This
fair value measurements are significant to our audit
because the balances of investment properties and
convertible bonds of approximately HK$83,300,000 and
HK$112,000,000 as at 31 December 2017 are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group’'s fair value measurement involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuers engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation reports and
communicate with the external valuers to discuss and
challenge the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant judgments
and assumptions applied in the valuation models;

—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation models to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
models; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurements
of the investment properties and convertible bonds are
supported by the available evidence.

LOANS RECEIVABLES
Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of loans receivables
for impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of loans receivables of
HK$313,350,000 as at 31 December 2017 is material to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group's impairment test involves application of judgement
and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit
limits and loan periods to borrowers;

—  Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the borrowers;

—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
—  Assessing aging of the loans receivables;
—  Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the borrowers;
and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for loans
receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website

at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/

standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05988

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—F

—tFA=F—HIFE

2017 2016
- —E-REF
Notes HK$’' 000 HK$ 000
Biat FHET FHET
Revenue WA 8 122,653 (101,905)
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA (56,163) (5,401)
Other income E AU A 9 578 627
Administrative expenses THEAR (33,813) (35,655)
Share-based payments LARR 9 245 2 3R I8 - (8,353)
Gain on bargain purchase B UWE 2 Was 10b 456
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB ARz W= 11 3,187 —
Net fair value loss on convertible bond A {ES A FEEEFHE (901) -
Fair value (loss)/gain on KEMERAFEZ
investment properties (E18), Wax (490) 14,423
Finance costs BLE KA 12 (3,.392) -
Profit/(loss) before tax BRECATRER,(BE) 32,115 (136,264)
Income tax expense FriS®i sz 13 (3.771) (2,027)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERHN,(FEE) 14 28,344 (138,291)
Other comprehensive Ha2mEWBA(EE) :
income/(loss):
Items that may be reclassified HEREEEFT 7 FEE
to profit or loss: B ZHE -
Foreign currency translation reserve  RHENBARBEF HE
reclassified to profit or loss upon EER 2 INEREREE
disposal of subsidiaries 1,538 -
Exchange differences on translating & /GINETS 2 [E 5 =58
foreign operations 6,684 (6,787)
Total other comprehensive AEEHMEEBA
income/(loss) for the year (E518) 4% 8,222 (6,787)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ZAEEZEU A~
for the year (BE518) #%8 36,566 (145,078)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER (EHE) 17
Basic (cents per share) BEAR(FRAW) 3.03 (19.65)
Diluted (cents per share) s (BB 2.13 (19.65)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RaE ISR
At 31 December 2017
R-F—+&F+-H=+—~H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Biat FHET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R FE 18 18,007 18,417
Investment properties wWEYE 19 83,300 100,946
Intangible asset mEEE 20 1,000 1,000
Goodwill Bl 21 6,533 4,137
Other assets Hih&EE 400 400
109,240 124,900
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 10,572 -
Trade and interest receivables B 5 I ERIE K e B B 23 41,041 18,661
Loans receivables EREWRFRIA 24 313,350 161,700
Prepayments, deposits and TRNRIE - R REM
other receivables FEWFRIR 4,441 4,197
Financial assets at fair value AT EFAEEN
through profit or loss TRIEE 25 81,208 -
Bank balances held on REFBEMNIRITER
behalf of clients 26 37,504 35,326
Bank and cash balances IRIT MRS Ak 27 63,791 41,434
551,907 261,318
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B2 EMNIA 28 54,352 40,189
Other payables and accruals Hinfe I m R ERRE A 17,288 2,601
Tax payable AT I8 2,796 148
74,436 42,938
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE SRR
At 31 December 2017
RZF—+F+ZH=1+—H

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Notes HK$’' 000 HK$' 000

Kz FExT FAETT

Net current assets RBEEFE 477,471 218,380

Total assets less current liabilities #“&ERAEEE 586,711 343,280
Non-current liabilities FRBERE

Convertible bonds AJ AR B 5 29 112,000 -

Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE 30 419 1,960

112,419 1,960

NET ASSETS BEFE 474,292 341,320
Capital and reserves EXR#EE

Share capital AR AR 31 45,580 32,430

Reserves ] 428,712 308,890

TOTAL EQUITY R 474,292 341,320

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 170
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Director ~ Wen Jialong

EF B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
W\ 7(*")’\?3,%@]2%

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEx _FT—+F+_A=1—HIFE
Share- Foreign
based  currency
Share Share Capital  payment translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
UG e
k& RoEE  ERRG ZRUERG  HERGE  REEW szt
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK§'000
T FiEn T TR TR T TR
At 1 January 2016 R=E-E-5-A 25,69 218,8% 4,289 - (1,922) 179,653 426,612
Share-based payments R Z B - = = 8,353 - - 8,353
Total comprehensive loss ERZER TE!,%%%E
for the year - - - - (6,787)  (138,291)  (145,078)
Issue of shares on placements ~ REERE{TR(A 6,734 44,699 - - - - 51,433
At 31 December 2016 RZE—F
TZA=t-H 32,430 263,595 4,289 8,353 (8,709) 41,362 341,320
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t£-f-A 32,430 263,595 4,289 8,353 (8,709) 41,362 341,320
Shares options lapsed EREXNERE
during the year - - - (906) - 906 =
Issue of share on exercise RIERERETRR
of share options 1,139 11,262 - (3,995) - - 8,406
Issue of share on conversion ~ RBAARREFRETRR
of convertible bond 12,01 75,989 - - - - 88,000
Total comprehensive income ~ ERZEHALE
for the year = = = = 8,222 28,344 36,566
At 31 December 2017 RIB—t%F
TZA=t+-H 45,580 350,846 4,289 3,452 (487) 70,612 474,292
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F+-HA=+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2017 2016
“E—tF ZE-RF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TExT TAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRBRERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATR S, (EE) 32,115 (136,264)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERSETE 2,005 2,012
Finance costs AR 3,392 -
Share-based payments PARR A 2 i 2 5/ I8 - 8,353
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR 2 Was (3,187) -
Gain on bargain purchase BEWE W (456) -
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair HERQNFEGFABRZ
value through profit or loss EREEZEE - 122,328
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BFERE
and equipment Z B8 15 452
Interest income FEHA (501) (24)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties BEWMEATFEZER/ (W) 490 (14,423)
Net fair value loss on convertible bond RRESAFEBETE 901 -
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BATESABRNEREE
through profit or loss Z R FEN R (18,532) -
Operating profit/(loss) before working LEESEHRILE
capital changes wmFl/ (1) 16,242 (17,566)
Change in inventories FEEE (1,324) -
Change in loans receivables EREWRIEE (151,650) (161,700)
Change in trade and other receivables g5 N EMEKTIRE S (16,424) 4,527
Change in bank balance held on behalf REFBRRITERED
of clients (2,178) (26,969)
Change in trade payables B o RNRIEEE) 11,532 10,826
Change in other payables and accruals Hith BN IENTARE RS 4,692 1,170
Change in financial assets at fair value BATEFABRNSREE
through profit or loss L) - 152,682
Cash used in operations RETEBFARS (139,110) (37,030)
Income tax paid B MENR (1,123) -
Net cash used in operating activities RETHRARELEE (140,233) (37,030)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BEx _FT—+F+_A=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
HKS$' 000 HK$ 000
TExT TAT
Cash flows from investing activities RETFHFBRERE
Interest received S ESN 501 24
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BFEREE
plant and equipment Zﬁﬁ@?ﬁ - 1,903
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yo BB B (8,992) (1,226)
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBA T?ﬁ@?ﬁ 36,186
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERZE (557) (5,754)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (5,153) (17,381)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFABZN
through profit or loss ERMEE (62,676) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZEHMARESFHE (40,691) (22,434)
Cash flows from financing activities METHERERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares BITROFERIEEFE - 51,433
Net proceed from issue of convertible bond AT IR 5 PTG TR R AR 199,099 -
Proceed from issue of shares upon exercise IFEBREREITRD S
of share options A 8,406 -
Interest paid BERFHE (3,392) -
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEZBFEREFHE 204,113 51,433
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRAELEESE E
cash equivalents #in, CRd) F 23,189 (8,031)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FOHRekRe vﬁlﬁ\ B
of the year 41,434 50,832
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ExEe s w2 (832) (1,367)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREERBELEEER 63,791 41,434
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BeRBALEEERIN
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS AR 63,791 41,434
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Lamtex Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. During the year,
the address of its principal place of business is Room
1814-1815, 18/F, Star House, 3 Salisbury Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2017. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (the “HKAS”) and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
consolidated financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial
position except as describe below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FE R 5] R RIS ] & 78 B 7 3 5 2 A

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

a.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to
the classification of financial assets which
is based on cash flow characteristics and
the business model in which the asset is
held. A debt instrument that is held within
a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows and that
has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding is measured at amortised
cost. A debt instrument that is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting the contractual cash
flows and selling the instruments and that
has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding is measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
All other debt instruments are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Equity
instruments are generally measured at fair
value through profit or loss. However, an
entity may make an irrevocable election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis to
measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities are carried
forward largely unchanged from HKAS 39
except that when the fair value option is
applied changes in fair value attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognised
in other comprehensive income unless this
creates an accounting mismatch.

(&)

a.

BREMBRELNEIREH
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BREBRRNAE N HREE
AeHB AR RNVER
TR AR EEIAEM
2mEisEt & o A EMER
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SIANERETE o A - B8R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

a.

\ 84 Lamtex Holdi

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss
impairment model to replace the incurred-
loss impairment model in HKAS 39. It is
no longer necessary for a credit event or
impairment trigger to have occurred before
impairment losses are recognised. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income,
an entity will generally recognise 12-month
expected credit losses. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, an entity will recognise lifetime
expected credit losses. The standard includes
a simplified approach for trade receivables to
always recognise the lifetime expected credit
losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39
are carried forward largely unchanged.

The new expected credit loss impairment
model in HKFRS 9 may result in the earlier
recognition of impairment losses on the
Group’s trade receivables, loan receivables and
other receivables. The directors do not expect
the impact to be material however.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue
standards and interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that
an entity recognises revenue to depict the
transfer of goods and services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to become entitled in
exchange for those goods and services.

ngs Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

b.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance
with the core principle by applying a 5-step
model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4, Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive
disclosure requirements relating to revenue.

Other than the disclosure requirement, the
adoption of HKFRS 15 will not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Lease

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and
related interpretations. The new standard
introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases (with optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors
will therefore continue to classify leases as
operating or financing leases.

2. ERFIIREETEREMBREER

(&)
b.

BRMBHREEAUEISHEF
aHWE(E)
ERREBEZORAEBEMT
{82 B AE A e d  am

1. BAEEPIIMZAH
F

2. BAAHNTHENRE

3. EERSE

4. BREIEISEESLHT
MEHEE

5. RERTHRENEER
(kB ) HERR UL 2t

N

BB RA R RS 2 HE

BEsko

BRI E BRI AT B
WEHERE 1558 HAE S BE R
RITEEBATE -

ERMEREERE16HKHEE
BB IEREERIE 16 5K
BEEGHENEITREER
HigmRE - ZFaI £85I A
EBEABAZE—SHEEE
X RBEAEFTEDLCE M
BEHE BAREBHEHERER
FREEEMEEAGE(EH
HEMEEBEEEZHENE
BEUERR) BEVBRE
HERFE 16 HABURBE B GRT
HRIEN7TRBEBAEHEAZEE
FRIBAME - At - A AR
BEHE I EAKCEHENR

BEHE -

MEZRERAR 201745 85 r



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FE R 5] R RIS ] & 78 B 7 3 5 2 A
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (4&)

C. HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued) & ERMBREENF16FEE

The Group’s leased premises are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise
and measure a liability at the present value
of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset
for these leases. The interest expense on the
lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-
use asset will be recognised in profit or loss.
The Group’ s assets and liabilities will increase
and the timing of expense recognition will also
be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 36(b), the Group's
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for its leased
premises amounted to HK$2,433,000 as
at 31 December 2017. The Company will
need to perform a more detailed assessment
in order to determine the new assets and
liabilities arising from these operating leases
commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties
and financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss which are carried at their
fair values. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors of the Group (the “Directors”)
to exercise their judgments in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgments and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these consolidated
financial statements are further disclosed in note 4
to these consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interest represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
contingent consideration. Acquisition- related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in
the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-
date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FTESTEEE(E)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued) EBEHREE(E)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more EEeFFHETRENS  RES
frequently if events or changes in circumstances 4 33 15 5 o R U AT B 3R R (B B

indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as

FRZHETRERR - ERAA
MRFTREBENE - BERERR
ZETETRE T Xt BRI E i
BEZFENEER - BEZRER

stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment BRFEEEaNER - BRI TR
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated B - ERERETE  mEgsRE

profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair

BHRWEZ RN EMER 2 RE
EEE -

TR BB A )2 FRAE B i 2a 1) 2P 1R IR
PRBCR BB A RNKEE B2
AR EERABEZ A FEL DI

sty

value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and & o
liabilities at the acquisition date.
Foreign currency translation SpekmE

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

(iii)y  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

&

TRETHEE)

M BERRE

ME - BB KRBT A EREE
ZEITERRFIRERRIIR

ARIR B AR 2 RIRAE B Al BEER A
AEE - MEKAKNRERETE - A
HREZHEBRRA T G ABEZRE
B SEE R EF—TREEER
R MAEMEEREEBRIERES
F AR R B R -

W - BERREEENFENER
SR B 7 2 78 4 ER PO AR AR L
FIABEHE - BULRBRE B
&R

Land and building T RAEF 5%
Leasehold improvements MEMEEE 33%
Plant and machinery 5 K i 2s 10% to 20%
10% 2= 20%
Furniture and fixtures RKERBERE 10% to 33%
10% 2= 33%
Motor vehicles TE 10% to 20%
10% 2 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
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TRETHEE)

BREME
REYEEFERDRES R HEK
THEZ LR HBTF - REWEL
TREXRK(BREYMEREZAAER
B FTE -

R HERR - REMETRERF

stated at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from BB - IEBMENTLESEBTES
changes in fair value of the investment property are 2R EERNEEL RN IESE
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which R o

they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

HERBEYME Z W R BER R L EM
BREFRENERAE I MNER
WRIBEE TR ©

Operating leases KEHE
The Group as lessee KEEERFABAA

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FTESHBE(E)
Intangible assets BREE

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill where they satisfy the definition of
an intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets
is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis, where the purchase or sale of
an investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
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TRETHEE)

BrE

HRBIRE S NGRFRERARERE™T
BITREZHRABARHERE -
AIRERR 5 A EEERARKAE I
R WIRAFEMNEEERR SN
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BAFEHAHRZ 2 BEE
BATE RS2 2 REAERH B
oS (B ERA SR T 5 TR
BEAFET ABRORE - ZFR
ARERATENE - RSREZA

are subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or SEEEHEL 2 W EERIER
losses arising from changes in fair value of these TR o

investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

Trade and other receivables and loan receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment
of other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the carrying amount of the
receivables and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition. The amount of the
allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IRl R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_A=1+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHBEEK(E)
Trade and other receivables and loan BEEZREMEBEWRIBEBLUREFEWFR
receivables (Continued) 8 (&)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase
in the receivables’ recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the receivables at the
date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group ' s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to
convert the bonds into equity instruments, other
than into a fixed number of equity instruments at
a fixed conversion price, are regarded as combined
instruments. At the date of issue, the fair value of
the convertible bonds is determined using an option
pricing model and is measured at fair value with
gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are net off with the proceeds on
initial recognition.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a) Interest income from financial assets is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’'s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(b)  Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘T A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FTESHBE(E)

Revenue recognition (Continued) WARER (&)

(0 Revenues from the sales of goods are () HEERMEBWARFAEREZ
recognised on the transfer of significant risks BARE R K [0 R R RERR -
and rewards of ownership, which generally —REEMERTAREER
coincides with the time when the goods BEPZREMBES -
are delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.

(d)  Commission and brokerage income represent d)y HEk&LWABRITA &L
brokerage income earned on all brokerage RS HA L2 A KRR R
transactions and are recognised upon BR 7SS AR o

rendering of services.

Employee benefits EERA

(a)  Employee leave entitlements (a) ESREY
Employee entitlements to annual leave and EEFRERBRBHBENE T
long service leave are recognised when they EERER EMEEEREHZE
accrue to employees. A provision is made WMEBRAMIBREREMES 2
for the estimated liability for annual leave FRERREEBZMGFTEE
and long service leave as a result of services EL#E - EERBEERR
rendered by employees up to the end of the RS I HER -

reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Pension obligations (b) BIKTHAIE

The Group contributes to defined contribution REE A EBRHEFCRIRGTEIE
retirement schemes which are available to all HEZR - FTERE Y A REZ
employees. Contributions to the schemes by & - EERBEAEERERR
the Group and employees are calculated as a BEEARFE ZADEIEL -
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The BB 2 BRIKEFETEIK
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to AiEgEAREBERAZESINZ
profit or loss represents contributions payable BEFR o

by the Group to the funds.

(c)  Termination benefits (c) BRI FIE
Termination benefits are recognised at the BRRIEHEREXREERT
earlier of the dates when the Group can no BIREZEEN  MEX&EE
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits REBAKARLF R NE L
and when the Group recognises restructuring BIEHEE (UREE BE) B
costs and involves the payment of termination o
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to director/employee

The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot
be reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the
Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties
render services, unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets.

If the equity instruments granted vest immediately,
the counterparty is not required to complete
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a specified period of service before becoming MATRATTA TS E HIE 2 RS o fiRidl
unconditionally entitled to those equity instruments. BEBETERER  BRERABER

In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the
entity shall presume that services rendered by
the counterparty as consideration for the equity
instruments have been received. In this case, on grant
date the entity shall recognise the services received in
full, with a corresponding increase in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘T A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sales, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for captialisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
assets, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R ME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_A=1+—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

&

TRETHEE)

BiIR (&)
BEXERBANBENBERMBREKZ
AREE B At E B AR D% A BT A AR R
WAz ZFMER - RIEFIARAER
FERMBRRTE R ZEER - M
EFETH IR B E R R P e H 3R A K A A]
IRERFZRE APARBABRICK
B A TR TR K S 1 8 2 B SR )i A By
R BAR—EARZH  AHEREZE
BAFAINRRANS EREME E K
BEMIIBcEREZRL T ERR
Poad R e - AT ERR%E
BERAE -

BELEREBERERNNB AR ZREM
EEZERTMERZRER - EEAX
SEREHERER RO R ERE
BRAENENA] RASKED 2 1HR
BRAN ©

EEFIABE 2 REERSREHR
@Ef o WA AR BEA & SR Bt
A PAN 3 2 BB 5 BR 0 & E A DR

BEERAREHNBESEREES
RHFER IR ERGTE - BRERES
RBEPRRCROKEL LD HRMZ
BE o ELERBR B PR HE
ELEFRBEANEREMEE KSR E
EEERTRABZER  ELEHREAT
SR 2K e s E N R

27
A °

wERRERAR 207%% 101 j””



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are resumed to be recovered through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manned as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group.

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to and assess the performance of the
Group’s various lines of business in different
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or not yet available for use are reviewed annually
for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except investment properties
and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred tax for investment properties,
the directors have rebutted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

4, CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes impairment loss for bad
and doubtful debts based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade and
interest receivables and loan receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of
bad and doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed. If
the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of
the investment properties. In determining the
fair values, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgment and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment and

(d)

depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash- generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
The carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was approximately
HK$6,533,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks; foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank balances
held on behalf of client, bank and cash
balances, trade and interest receivables and
loans receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group's financial assets.

The credit risk on bank balances held on
behalf of client, bank and cash balances are is
limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event that counterparties fail to perform
their obligations at 31 December 2016 in
relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amounts of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to its loans receivables
and trade and interest receivables. In order
to minimise credit risk, the directors have
delegated a team to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the Directors review the recoverable amount
of each individual loan to customers regularly
to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentration of credit risk as
approximately 6% (2016: 11%) and 26%
(2016: 48%) of the Group’s loan and interest
receivables were due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s loans receivables bear interests
at fixed interest rates, therefore the Group's
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R ME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 5.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

tRAREEEEREE (&)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) #RBESER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor REBREEZ T HHERBE
current and expected liquidity requirements NERRBESTE @ BIRE
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves EREHIREEEmEEH
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in FEHRHESTE - KNEE
the short and longer terms. All the Group's FIESRBEEN —FATIE -
financial liabilities are due within one year.
The maturity analysis of the Company’s XomlemBEIHY TN
financial liabilities is as follows: T e
Within Between 1
Carrying 1 year or on and
amounts demand 2 years
—FRG —-£7
BEE BRERNEE mF 2@
HKS$'000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THER THET TET
At 31 December 2017 R-Z-t£+=A=t+-H
Trade payables BHENE 54,352 54,352 -
Other payables and accruals ~ E A& R EFHFUE 17,288 17,288 -
Convertible bonds R ES 112,000 2,240 112,117
183,640 73,880 112,117
Within Between 1
Carrying 1 year or on and
amounts demand 2 years
—FR% —FF
FREE REXNER M F 2 [
HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TR THT THT
At 31 December 2016 R=Z-R"E+=ZA=t-H
Trade payables BAENTIE 40,189 40,189 —
Other payables and accruals A JER & &R 208 2,601 2,601 -
42,790 42,790 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 5. tREMREERERBE(Z)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e) M+=-HA=+—Hz&¢®mIA
December =]
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FER FET
Financial assets: TREE
Loans and receivables ERNERFIAE(BERE
(including cash and NE&EBEER)
cash equivalents) 460,127 258,631
Financial assets at fair value BEATEGFABRD
through profit or loss TRUEE (FFHET)
initial — initial designated 81,208 -
541,335 258,631
Financial liabilities: cREaE:
Financial liabilities at fair EAFERAERR
value through profit or loss TREE 112,000 -
Financial liabilities at R SRR AR
amortised cost TREE 71,640 42,790
183,640 42,790
(f)  Fair values fH L2¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial TREENESRABECRAE
assets and financial liabilities as reflected ERMRERE M BARREK - %
in the consolidated statement of financial LHRAERAFERE
position approximate their respective fair
values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categories into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

DNVEE

NHEREETERNEEN2EE
REFZXSHRBNEEEERN
BRAE - AT RERRFER AT
ERNVEZERE - BRABRK BN
ERVFEZAERMZBABED B
—fEEAR :

E—RBABE : EERBNTEAH
AILARGEHEREES B ERNERT
52 BB (RERAE) -

F_RBAEE  RREEKAEER
ERHEERWABER ZBABIR(E—
RABEOMELRIN) ©

FZRBABE - REELBBHIT
AR B AR

AEBHBRIINEHREHE RN
REEEE ARIATM=EEREE
HEBAREL -

mEERERAT 20174% 115 r



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
‘T A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. NFESTE(E)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy (a) REEFHRATFEEBRERER
at the end of the reporting period: Bl :

Fair value measurements using: Total
AVEHBFRAZER it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
£-8  $°8 %= -%-tf
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

TER TER TR TER

Description =3
Recurring fair value REMATETE:

measurements:
Financial assets at fair BATE ABER

value through profit or loss TREE
Listed securities in Hong Kong ~ REBELMAIES 81,028 - - 81,028
Financial liabilities at fair value R AFET ABZH

through profit or loss TRER
Convertible bonds ARES - 112,000 - 112,000
Investment properties: REME

Commercial - PRC BE-F - 83,300 - 83,300
Total recurring fair REMNTEAEAR

value measurements 81,028 195,300 - 276,328
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

6. AVEAFEE)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy (a) REEFHRATFEEBRERER
at the end of the reporting period: Bl : (&)
(Continued)
Fair value measurements using: Total
RNHEFEMFAZER - Hy
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
F—1 F-R F=H —TNF
HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$"000 HK$' 000
THET FET TAT THET
Description =201
Recurring fair value REMNTETE:
measurements:
Investment properties: REME
Commercial - PRC EESlilc - 100,946 - 100,946

During the period, there were no transfer
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2016: nil). The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfer between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.
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A EETTER  RBRER
BE-ARER (T RF:
&) AEBHHRARTE
AR T 70 e o B OR 3 A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_A=1—HIFZF

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. NFESTE(E)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by (b) RTZBA=+—BXKEFFMHA
the Group and valuation techniques and HEBEREERALETERE
inputs used in fair value measurements as ARG ESMTRE AZE
at 31 December:

The Group's financial controller is responsible AEBNMBEEE TRV
for the fair value measurements of assets REETEEERBENR
and liabilities required for financial reporting TEAE(BEE=HRAFE
purposes, including level 3 fair value TR  MBHEERLEEATF
measurements. The financial controller reports B EEERESSER - I
directly to the board of directors for these fair BREREEGTFE LMK
value measurements. Discussions of valuation M EREFIEEER -
processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the board of directors
at least twice a year.
Valuation techniques and inputs used in E-RAVEFEERANGE
Level 2 fair value measurements Bl 2 o A B
Valuation Fair value
Description technique Inputs 2017
—ET—tF
it fh B B i WABE NEE
HK$’000
FHERT
Assets:
Investment properties Direct comparison Market price 83,300
approach
BEE -
REMZE BELLEVR M5 ER
Liabilities:
Convertible bonds Binomial model Share price 112,000
Discount rate
Volatility
BfE -
3R ES —|EAf4E AP ERS
IELE
A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6.
(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements as
at 31 December: (Continued)

DNVETE(E)

() R+t=RA=+-BXKEEHFRA
HEBRKERAFENER
R ERM R A RS (&)

Description Valuation technique Inputs  Fair value 2016

AN S

Fatt fhE R o A BUE ~E

HK$' 000

FHETT
Assets:

Investment properties Direct comparison Market price 100,946
BE -

KREWE BELLLEUR M5 ER
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. THER

Operating segments are identified on the basis
of internal reports about the components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. Reported segment information
is based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by executive
directors, being the CODM of the Group.

I

REDBUAREBARREERE
o BRI ARASEBRNEE D
B ZE0PREIBEERRE (X
RRERRE ) TR - ADEE
BREEDBRAFEEKRRE - FIRED
BERDERATES (AIAKEE
BRERARE) EHEMN 2 ARER
WEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s operation are organised based on six
business activities which are also the information
regularly reported to CODM. The details of operating
and reportable segments of the Group are as
follows:

(i) Securities trading and investment — purchase
and sale of securities and securities investment

(i) Securities brokerage and provision of securities
margin finance

(iii)  Property investment — generation of rental
income

(iv)  Loan financing services — provision of funds
and financial services to third parties

(v)  Trading and manufacturing of electronic
products

Other operating segment which do not meet the
guantitative thresholds prescribed by HKFRS 8 for
determing reporting segments are combined as “all
other segments”:
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_A=1+—HIFZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEER (Z)
Segment revenue and results: PEBARES :
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue RTAREERREDEIWARE
and results by reportable segments: BT
Securities
brokerage
and
provision of Trading and
Securities  securities Loan manufacturing
trading and margin Property  financing  of electronic Al other
investment finance  investment services products  segments Total
Eg
R5EE  RRHES R E7EREE it
kRE RELHE NERE EELT REE  HH5E et
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn T Thn Thn Thn
Year ended BECR-1E
31 December 2017 T2AZt-ALFE
Segment revenue: AEWA
Revenue from external NPERRA
Customers 18,532 3275 2,697 35,819 62,253 11 122,653
Seqment profit{oss) AgEr/(BB) 18,532 (4,595) 1,911 21,009 2,781 (180) 39,484
Unallocated corporate income & FARA KA 3,643
Unallocated corporate expenses A TARA AR (11.012)
Profit before tax G 3,115

WERRERAT 2075% 121 /
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEER (Z)
Segment revenue and results: (Continued) DHEBAREE : (&)
Securities
brokerage
and
provision of
Securities  securities Loan
trading and margin Property  financing All other
investment finance  investment services  segments Total
BRI
BREE  RRfES 5 i
kiE  REGRE  WRRE RERB  EfsR st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
T i TERL TR TEx TR
Year ended 31 December 2016  HZ-F-AET-A=t-ALEE
Segment revenue: ARUA
Revenue from external customers SN PIA (122,328) 2574 23 9,707 581 (101,905)
Segment (loss)/ profit AR (BR)/&H (122,637) (3.327) 13,265 829 (93 (111,93)
Unallocated corporate income KT AEAAKA 627
Unallocated corporate expenses A FAEATER (24,928)
Loss before tax R AIEE (136,264)

The accounting policies of the reportable and
operating segment are the same as the Group's
accounting policies. Segment result represents profit/
(loss) from each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs, share-based payments, directors’
remuneration, finance costs, other income and other
gains and losses (excluding the fair value changes and
gain/loss from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which is included in the securities
trading and investment segment result). This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

\ 122 Lamtex Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2017

AEREED B T BRERE
Ee st BERER - " BREEREZ O
2af,/ (BR)  RoRHRITHE
A AR S ZF0R - BRI
BB~ E A R Y as (B
BREFABFEERREDERELZ
RHEEHRRATEAABRRZE
MEEKDBE) - RMEIERE
BIRREEITIERAEER IR BL AT
BRIV -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e B R M T
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEER (Z)
Segment assets and liabilities PEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets NTRASETRENHECEERE
and liabilities by reportable segment: BT :
Securities
brokerage
and
provision of Trading and
Securities  securities Loan manufacturing
trading and margin Property  financing  of electronic Al other
investment finance  investment services products  segments Total
#5E8
B5EE  RRMRE g% E7EREE 5
RRE RELHE  NERRE RERE REE  EfRE it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tin TEn Tin Tin Tén  ThEn T
Asat31December2017  R=F-tEtf=1-A
Segment assets PEEE 81,208 60,445 86,457 340,963 39,757 8,653 617,483
Unallocated coporate assets R FARAFEE 43,664
Consolidated total assets RREAE 661,147
Segment liablities 2888 - 615 839 3,561 20311 6 71488
Unallocated corporate liabilies A FAEAAE 115,367
Consolidated total labilies AR EEE 186,855
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. PHEER (E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEEREE(E)
Securities
brokerage
and
provision of
Securities  securities Loan
trading and margin Property  financing All other
investment finance  investment services  segments Total
BRI
BREE  RRfES 5 i3]

EEE  REREE  WRRE BERRE RSB it
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Ten  Thn  TRn  TEr  TErL  TEn

As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=1-H

Segment assets HEEE % 56,977 104407 167,093 6203 334976
Unallocated corporate assets AFARRAEE 51,242
Consolidated total assets GRRELHE 386,218
Segment liabilities PHRAR - 40,876 3,062 148 208 44,29
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ AF2EAREE 604
Consolidated total liabilties GRERER 44,898
The Group’s unallocated corporate assets at the end REBRBEHARZ AT HERFE
of the reporting period mainly consist of property, EXERREME  BELIRE &R
plant and equipment, deposits and prepayments and KEMFERRERREEEIER °
cash and cash equivalents. The Group's unallocated REBRBEHRZATHERRE
corporate liabilities at the end of the reporting BEREHEMENKIBERERER - 7]
period consists other payables and accruals, BREFRREEHBEAE -

convertible bonds and deferred tax liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_A=1+—HIFZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEEREE(E)
Geographical information: IR E R
Revenue Non-current assets
PN FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF ZEBE—ttF —T—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT FHExT FHET

Hong Kong BB 119,879 (110,047) 23,663 22,812
PRC H 2,774 8,142 85,577 102,088

122,653 (101,905) 109,240 124,900

The revenue and non-current assets information EXHBRARIERBEEER TIER
above is based on the locations of operations. B FTIEHD[R o
Information about major customers ERETEEFMNER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FTHERT FET
Trading and manufacturing of BFfEMEBENRRESE
electronic products segment
Customer A XFA 39,928 N/A
Customer B EFB 31,196 N/A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE 8. LON
The Group's revenue is analysed as follows: AEERNKRADTLOT :
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FHExT FHET
Loss on disposal of financial assets at  HEZRAFEFABZ
fair value through profit or loss WEmEEERE - (122,328)
Fair value gain on financial assets at BAVERABRA
fair value through profit or loss TREENFEKS 18,532 -
Rental income HEHA 2,902 2,321
Sales of goods EmiEE 62,330 5,821
Commission and brokerage KEFHFEENRE
income from securities dealings R &8 W A 3,070 1,662
Interest income from KB EFT
brokerage business FEWA - 912
Interest income from loans REEHE P ERH
to customers LB U A 35,819 9,707
122,653 (101,905)
9.  OTHER INCOME 9. HflA
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Interest income FEWA 501 24
Others HA 77 603
578 627
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

10. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

10. WEBHEBQFE

(@) On 31 August 2017, the Group acquired (@ RZE2E—tFNA=+—8"

100% of issued share capital of Praise
Perfection Limited for a cash consideration of
HK$2,000,000. Praise Perfection Limited and
its subsidiaries is principally engaged in trading
and manufacturing of electronic products.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Praise Perfection Limited and
its subsidiaries acquired as at its date of

acquisition is as follows:

NE B LA £ K 52,000,000
BTHBZEER M
100% EB&ITIRA - REBR
R NENBRRIEEHRES
FTEREERRE -

RIREEEBR A RN B
AR AR MR EER A &
AFENT

HK$' 000
FET
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - & K& 2,084
Inventories FE 1,910
Deposits, prepayments and e~ TERRIE KA M B RIE
other receivable 7,350
Bank and cash balances RTINS R 377
Trade payables =) ANE S (2,631)
Other payables H fth FE A IR (9,486)
Total identifiable net BATEFENR B FEEHE
liabilities at fair value (396)
Goodwill RS 2,396
Consideration transferred, FrEENRE  UREXN
satisfied by cash 2,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

10. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10. WEBHMEBAR (&)
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EAWENB AR 2R NIESEE
in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries: I8 B R SR =m DT
HK$'000
FET
Total cash consideration IR R(E 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrikEmRe R eEEEE (377)
1,623
Praise Perfection Limited and its subsidiary REARARIRENBARNKEH
contributed revenue of approximately HEARAREHREAFEERMBAL
HK$62,253,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit of 62,253,000 B TEAEE KA+ &
approximately HK$2,787,000 to the Group’s profit 492,787,000 ST E RSB R A o
for the year between the date of acquisition and the
end of the reporting period.
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January WZWER_T—+tF—H—H
2017, total Group's revenue for the year would T AEBEBFRNEWRARLD
have been approximately HK$131,524,000, and 131,524,000 7T & & A & F) & 49
profit for the year would have been approximately 27,949,000 8 T - W EHZERHE
HK$27,949,000. The proforma information is for HFEAZAH  RORBIAR T —+
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an F-A—HBZEK  AEEHERERK
indication of the revenue and results of operations ZWMAREEEG - I TRIER/RK
of the Group that actually would have been achieved FE TR -
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Praise WESEBRARMELCEHERHR
Perfection Limited is attributable to anticipates profit RHTB AR 2 BEREFER

contribution of the subsidiaries.
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BE T+ F+_A=1+—HIFZF

10. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

On 30 November 2017, the Group acquired
100% of issued share capital of Meteor
Investment (H.K.) Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$7,565,000. Meteor
Investment (H.K.) Limited and its subsidiaries
initially serve as a platform to development
business in relation to tourism and
entertainment alike.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Meteor Investment (H.K.) Limited

WIBKE AR (&)

(b)

R—ZE—+&F+—RA=+H"
REBE AR £ K E 7,565,000
BTWEEBRRERRA AN
100% EBITIRA - ERIKE
ERATREHB AR FIFA]
VEBE R ik b I IR SE AR R SE T 5%
BRZFE -

REBEEBRREARAR A
MEARBMEMRAIEER

and its subsidiaries acquired as at its date of BENHAFERT :
acquisition is as follows:
HK$’ 000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - = L& E 111
Inventories FE 7,788
Deposits, prepayments and e - TERTERIE K& H th U GRIE
other receivable 636
Bank and cash balances IRITRIE R 196
Other payables H fth FE 308 (456)
Deferred tax liabilities BEMRIBEE (254)
Total identifiable net BEATEFEN B FEELE
assets at fair value 8,021
Gain on bargain purchase H B 2 e (456)
Consideration transferred, FREENRE  UREX[
satisfied by cash 7,565
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

10. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10. WHEKHBAT (&)

Analysis of net outflow cash and cash equivalents in
respect of acquisition of subsidiaries:

ERRBHRBARIZRE MRS FE
HB R HFEDMT

HK$'000

FHET

Total cash consideration BIRER(E 7,565
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR Re RIS EEER (196)
7,369

Meteor Investment (H.K.) Limited and its subsidiaries
contributed revenue of approximately HK$77,000
to the Group’s revenue and loss of approximately
HK$180,000 to the Group’s profit for the year
between the date of acquisition and the end of the
reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2017, total Group’'s revenue for the year would
have been approximately HK$122,653,000, and
profit for the year would have been approximately
HK$26,257,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
HK$456,000 in the business combination. The gain
on bargain purchase was mainly attributable to the
appreciation of inventories.
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B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

11.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to an agreement dated 18 April 2017
entered into between a subsidiary of the Company,
Eminent Alliance Investments Limited (“Eminent
Alliance”) and an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”), Eminent Alliance disposed of its entire
interest in a subsidiary, Cityray Investments Limited
(the “Disposed Company"”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Disposal Group”) to the
Purchaser at a cash consideration of HK$38,000,000
(the "Disposal”). The Disposal resulted a gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$3,187,000. Further details of the Disposal were
published in the related announcement of the
Company dated 19 April 2017.

The Disposal Company was principally engaged in
investment holding and the Disposal Group was
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials and properties investment during the
period. The disposal was completed on 18 April
2017.

11.

HEHB LT

BREARRRNBARBEBIEERRA
AI([HH ] E—UBIE=/(E
FORZE—+tFMA+N\BHEIZZ
% - BB DAIR £ 1R & 38,000,000
BITHEERHBARMEIREER
AR ([HERRA]) REKB AR (5
BIHEEE D22 BEZTER
([HESHE]) - HESEESHEN
B AR zWzE%)3,187,000 T ° K
EEHE—PHBFL2HEARAR
“E—+FMAT+NBHE RS -

REIR - HEARTZNFREER
MEEEBETEREENEERY
ERE - HEFHER -_T—tFWA
TABZEX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11. HEMBARE)
HK$" 000
FH&T
Net assets of the Disposal B ENE L 7] EEFIE -
Group disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment M~ B & EE 1,153
Investment properties KEM= 29,887
Trade and other receivable B 5 & HAth e R IE 1,786
Inventories BE 450
Cash and cash equivalents RekA&ZFEER 1,814
Deferred tax liabilities BLEMIBEBE (1,815)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 33,275
Release of foreign currency IR BB E#E
translation reserve 1,538
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A Az W 3,187
Total consideration — satisfied by cash 2R (B (IR E/ER) 38,000
Analysis of net outflow of cash and BRI ENE 2 7l He R
cash equivalent in respect of R EETEE L) FEEZ T
disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration RERE 38,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HER ¢ KB EEEEH (1,814)
36,186
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. ®ERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESF S 3,392 —
13. INCOME TAX 13. FiB%
2017 2016
—E—tE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax:  BIHAEE — HEFIEH ¢
— Provision for the year —REERE 3,735 -
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEBERE 36 148
Deferred tax (note 30) EFERIE (MI5E30) - 1,879
Income tax expense P8R i 3,771 2,027

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) based on the assessable profit for the year.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax made
as the subsidiaries operating in the PRC have no

assessable profits for both years.

o

EMEHER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-—F—+ 51 = A=+—AILFE

13. INCOME TAX (Continued) 13.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense/
(credit) and the loss before tax is as follows:

Fr8®t (&)
FRBfi (%) BRI EE 2
HERAT ¢

2017 2016
—E—tF i ANCS
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI AR A (E1E) 32,116 (136,264)
Calculated at a domestic income RBEAFTEHIE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) ZE—RF 16.5%)FE 5,455 (22,484)
Tax effect of income not taxable HAGRMBMAZ BB E (3.770) (59)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEERELE ZEE
group entities operating in ERTABEZZE
other jurisdictions - 859
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HBERME L 2 RIETE 1.524 24,932
Tax effect of temporary difference REMABERER L
not recognised MG & 1 -
Tax effect of taxes losses not RNEERTIBEE
recognised BT E 1,097 1,011
Utilisation of tax losses previously BALAIARERLZ
not recognised MIAE R (470) (2,380)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (36) 178
One-off tax reduction — IR R TR R (40) -
Income tax expense for the year FEMSHEI L 3,771 2,057

At the end of the reporting period subject to
agreement by the tax authorities, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$307,277,758
(2016: HK$300,631,704) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future
streams of those entities of the Group.
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14.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

14.

The Group's profit/(loss) for the year is stated after

FEFERR(EE)
AEBAFEEEN(BE) 2NET

charging: &I
2017 2016
—E—tF —EB-RF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FH&T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAE 56,163 5,401
Depreciation of property, Y - BERERBITE
plant and equipment 2,005 2,012
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment w2 BB 15 452
Staff costs (including Directors’ BIHRA(BERTEI15HA
emoluments in note 15) EEHM) :
Salaries, fees, bonuses and e BF - 8E
allowances SO a:N 10,702 10,284
Share-based payments UARRAD 2 5 2 FRIE - 7,570
Retirement benefits scheme RRARAE IR
contribution 358 386
11,060 18,240
Share-based payments to a consultant #;F — &R Z LAIK(D - 783
X2 HIE
Operating lease rentals in respect AT RBF K&
of land and buildings MEHS 2,007 3,487
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R B & 990 720
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

BEx _FT—+F+_HA=1—HIUIFE
15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 15. E=EHM
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESFHMH
The remuneration of each Director of the BHE_ZE—+Ft+-_A=1+—
Company for the year ended 31 December HIEFEARARRARES 25
2017 is set out below: oyl
Salaries Retirement
and other Share-based benefits
Fees  benefits  payment scheme Total
HER DY v &K
we  HMEA  XHzZRE BAHE @it
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
Wit TER TER TER TER TER
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Wu Xiaolin REMAEE 360 574 - 18 952
Mr. Wen Wenfeng BXFLE 600 604 - 36 1,240
Ms. Shen Jing HHELT a 180 - - 6 186
Mr. Wen Jialong BRELE g - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHHTEE -
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George  BEFA% A 360 - - - 360
Mr. Liu Zhanging YRBEE b 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ye Weiming ER#LE ¢ 131 - - - 131
Independent non-executive ~ BUHHTEE -
directors:
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin 22 vk 120 - - - 120
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Lok Hoi Lam) B/ #i{E+ 120 - - = 120
Mr. Tse Long AREE 120 - - - 120
2111 1,178 - 60 3,349
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‘e g R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-F—+Ff = A=—AILEE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. EEHE(2Z)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=HM(E)
The remuneration of each Director of the HE—E—XRE+-_A=+—
Company for the year ended 31 December HIEFERARSEEZ 50
2016 is set out below: HHMT
Salaries Retirement
and other ~ Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payment scheme Total
EF I SABk{R R
e EbRN  XAZHE B st
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
i3 TAL TAT TAL TAL TAT
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. W Xiaolin REMEE 418 650 1,253 20 2,341
Mr. Wen Wenfeng BXFLE 678 480 1,253 36 2,447
Ms. Shen Jing HERL a 300 - - 8 308
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred ~ #REIE% & d 302 90 - - 392
Mr. Shi Liangsheng RRF L e 275 - - 10 285
Non-executive directors: FHIEE
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George  BEFI% A 390 - 906 - 1,296
Mr. Ye Weiming RE#tE C 101 - 906 - 1,007
Mr. Yu Shaoheng RATRE f 167 - - - 167
Independent non-executive B THHTEE :
directors:
Mr. Zeng Zhaolin Ty 130 - 62 - 192
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Lok Hoi Lam) /g + 130 - 62 - 192
Mr. Tse Long HRAE 130 - 62 - 192
3,021 1,220 4,504 74 8,819

mEnRERAS 201748 137 r



15.

4= A

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Notes:

(a)

Ms. Shen Jing was appointed as an executive
director on 29 July 2016 and resigned on 19
April 2017.

Mr. Liu Zhanging was appointed as non-
executive director on 1 September 2017.

Mr. Ye Weiming was appointed as a non-
executive director on 30 August 2016 and
resigned on 17 July 2017.

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing resigned as an executive
director on 14 March 2016.

Mr. Shi Liangsheng resigned as an executive
director on 15 July 2016.

Mr. Yu Shaoheng was appointed as a non-
executive director on 15 March 2016 and
resigned on 30 August 2016.

Mr. Wen lJialong was appointed as a non-
executive director on 17 July 2017 and
redesignated as executive director on 1
September 2017.

Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S R 2R MY R T

107 A .

EEHH ()
(a) EBHM (4)
Wit -

(b)

(a)

MBEXITR_ZT—RFt
At NWBEZERHT
EERR-ZT—tFMA
THBEBHE -

BRBRER T —+F
NA—BEZRESIENT
B%-

EREHEENR_ZT—RF
NA=+BEBZERIH
TEFER-_F—tFt
A+tHBHE -

MEEEER —T—REF
=ZATHBBHERTES -

ARAEER T —KRF
+tA+HEBEHERITES -

RAFERENR_ZT—RF

“ATHRBZRERIEHR
TEFEER-_F—REN
A=+BEHE -

BREEENR T —LF
TtA+LtBEBEERIEH
TEEER-_FT—tFN
A—BHRESATES -

ENBRSHFMAL
AEBRUKSHFMA LD

the highest in the Group are as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HKS$’ 000 HK$" 000
FTHERT FETT
Directors == 2,192 7,091
Employees E8 1,795 1,361
3,987 8,452
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15.
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b)
The Group’s five highest paid individuals
included two (2016: four) directors and
three (2016: one) employee. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The details of
the aggregate emoluments of the remaining
three (2016: one) employee are as follows:

ESHM(E)

TfUBRSHFMAL(E)
AEEBRUGSFHMMALEE
ME(ZE—RF:NB)ES
R=%2(ZF—X F: —3R)E
B -EBEEHFMFBEREX
AWM FRN - Z=H(ZF
—RF:—R)EEFHEE
N

2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e FMNEYA R
benefit-in-kind 1,741 290
Share-based payments PARRAD 2 A5 2 3R 3E - 1,057
Retirement benefit costs RIRE R A 54 14
1,795 1,361

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

) SENIE e dd

Number of individuals

A

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 0875 1,000,000 77T 3 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &c&

1,500,000 /87T - 1

Save as disclosed above, for the two years B EXFTIREEINN BHE-Z

ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no other —+EFER_E—XRFE+-HA

emoluments had been paid by the Group
to the Directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group.

=+—BIAESE - AEE
Wi EE S SRS HIA
TX MBS B AKE
B 58, A A 5 L 4 ) 5D -
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

16. DIVIDEND 16.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: nil).

17. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 17.

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$28,344,000 (2016:
loss of HK$138,291,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 935,122,469 (2016:
703,734,923) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

EFTETERRNEBEE_Z—LF

+-A=+—HLEFENTAKRE
—EREFEE)o

BREF,(BE)
EREAXRBF,(FHE)
AARBEBEAEGRERELRR
F(EB1E) DERARRRHEE AR
16 N F E & | 428,344,000 7T
— T —XF : [E518138,291,000%
TL) RANFE B TR E @A hnAE
¥ 80935,122,469 R ( = F — /N F -
703,734,923 %) 5t & -

BREERR
REBEE-ZT—tF+-_A=1t—Hi
FE ARFEBEARGEEERA
MIBBEATEE :

following:
Earnings &%
HK$'000
FHET
Earnings for the purpose of calculating FE&SREAREFZ B F
basic earnings per share 28,344
Add: Interest expenses on convertible i : ATEESFF S M
bonds 3,392
Net fair value loss on convertible AMREFAFEERFRE
bonds 901
32,637
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A I ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

17. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 17. SREAN(FE)(E)
Diluted earnings per share (Continued) BREBBRF (&)
HK$ 000
FH&T
Number of shares R&OBAR
Weighted average number of ordinary FTESRERRZF| 2 LB
shares for the purpose of calculating INHE- T35 84
basic earnings per share 935,122,469
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary MARITEE AR E S < B
shares arising from convertible BeLakeoxE
bonds outstanding 592,030,761
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary B BTEETER S
shares arising from share options 6,758,202

1,533,911,432

The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti- RBE-—ZT—XF+-_A=+—8It
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2016. EERRABEL BT A RSN E -
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - - BEKRE
Land and Leasehold ~ Plantand  Furniture Motor
building improvements  machinery and fixtures vehicles Total
HER
tHReF  BENERE  BEREE BEkE RE it
HK'000 HK" 000 HK" 000 HK" 000 HK" 000 HK'000
TR Tén Tén Tén Thn TR
COST: %
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7"%5-A-A 14,700 1,510 - 368 - 16,578
Additions AE = 1129 = 473 4152 5,754
Disposals M - (1,293) - - (1,592) (2,885)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAA - - - 1,035 - 1,035
Exchange difference EREHR - - - (5) = (5)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE- ET-A=1-H
1 January 2017 R=%-t5-R-H 14,700 1,346 - 1,871 2,560 20477
Additions hE - - - 395 162 557
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - - 2,05 120 19 2,195
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAH - (1127) - (69) - (1,196)
Disposals i3 - - - (98) (19) (117)
Exchange differences i - - 4 6 - 10
At 31 December 2017 ) 14,700 219 2,060 2,225 2,122 21,926
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: ~ Z3f#7& :
At 1 January 2016 R-E-E-A-H 61 353 - 171 - 585
Charge for the year ERAX 735 406 - 439 43 2,012
Disposals if:3 - (530) - = - (530)
Fxchange differences EREE - (7) = = - (7)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-~ET-A=1-H
1 January 2017 R=Z-t5-A-H 796 22) - 610 432 2,060
Charge for the year ERER 735 73 7 597 523 2,005
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAT - (43) - - - (#3)
Disposals i3 - (106) - (4 - (110)
Exchange differences i EE - 6 1 - - 7
At 31 December 2017 S e s e 1,531 152 18 1,203 955 3,919
CARRYING AMOUNTS: REE :
31 December 2017 “E-+F+-f=1-H 13,169 67 1,982 1,022 1,767 18,007
31 December 2016 8- F+ZA=1-H 13,904 1,124 - 1,261 2,128 18,417
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‘e g R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWH
2017 2016
—E—tF b ANCS
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FER FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 100,946 64,456
Additions NE 5,153 27,573
Change in fair value N EED) (490) 14,423
Disposal of subsidiaries B AR (29,887) =
Exchange differences &N E%R 7,578 (5,506)
At 31 December R+-_H=+—8H 83,300 100,946

Investment properties were revalued at the end

of the reporting period on the open market value
basis by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by an independent
professional valuer, Graval Consulting Limited (2016:
Ascent Partner Valuation Service Limited).

BREMENBRERRBBILERMGE
AEECXBERARIF(ZF—R
FNHAMEBABRAR) K2R
BUMROHRZNTHERERA
FMISEEEEETER -
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AR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20, EBEE

Trading rights

RERE
HK$’000
FHET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H =
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary ~ R UEE—FEMB A RREE 1,000
At 31 December 2016 and RZZBE-—RFE+A=1+T—BK
31 December 2017 —E—+F+-_A=+—H 1,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt BHERREESSE :
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 A-_Z—F—H—H -
and 31 December 2017 —E-R"E+A=+—H
r—_ZT—+F+-_A=+—H -
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RFTZA=1T—HK
31 December 2017 —E—+F+-_A=+—H 1,000

The Group’'s trading rights represent the trading
right for dealing in securities and advising on
securities in the Stock Exchange.

The trading rights has no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the Company can use to generate
net cash flows. The trading rights is considered
by the management of the Company as having
an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful
life is determined to be finite.
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42 A

NN e I

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE T+ F+_-_A=1—HIFZF

21.

GOODWILL 21. B8
Goodwill acquired in business combination is REBESHTPINER 2 AU ER S
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating RETBHE ST ENERS NI E
unit (“CGU") that are expected to benefit from H B ([BLELEMN]) - B9 HE
that business combination. The carrying amount of ZEREmEMT
goodwill had been allocated as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Securities brokerage and provision 85 A0 R AR 3B 55
of securities margin finances REBESRE 4,137 4,137
Trading and manufacturing of BEfEmBEEMEE
electronic products 2,396 -
6,533 4,137

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate.
Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based
on past practices and expectations on market
development.

ReELBMAR RN SR TEER
AR REANEERAEBEERE
E o MRS REBEMRANEEMR
RIHABRMER BRX - BE
EMRFBARRER - NEBEF AR
Bk B BT i5 8 BB R E R TG MR
& B A BB ALY E LR B R A A A R
EFRTRAEIRE - BRRAIRASELE
MG E RGP E RN FHREE
BERSEE - BEENRRWAT
RBEEHRBHMISERAEE -
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ire BB ER M T
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-—F—+ 51 = A=+—AILFE

21. GOODWILL (Continued) 21. BHE(E)
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from AREFESRNIBS TSI EES
the most recent financial budgets approved by the EHERKAFRN OB HTEE -
directors for the next five years with the residual Tt EABI A IS R R B5% o %KX
period using the growth rate of 5%. This rate does THEAEEMISHTFHIRAERE -
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets.
The rates used to discount the forecast cash flows RAARBRFERAR S RENMELRT :
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Securities brokerage and provision B aE MR 5
of securities margin finances RECRE 8.86% 11.12%
Trading and manufacturing of BFfEMEBERRE
electronic products 9.85% N/A
22. INVENTORIES 22. FE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THERT AT
Raw material R 455 -
Finish goods SIRK o 2,424 -
Merchandised goods 72 om 7,693 —
10,572 -
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iR e ISR M T
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

23. TRADE AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23. EBEZRWBNREREWRRER
2017 2016
—E—tF b ANCS
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FER FHET
Trade receivables B S EWFRIR

Cash client REeERP 4,107 5,429
Margin client RELEF 1,402 8,187
Clearing houses EEFT 1,292 1,165
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 27,122 1,678
Interest receivables JE WA B 4,916 2,694
Rental receivable fEW A S 2,694 —
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERBE (492) (492)

Trade and interest receivables, net B S WA R
JEWI RIS - JF5E 41,041 18,661

All trade receivable from cash clients and margin
clients are not past due at the reporting dates for
which the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable. The settlement terms of trade
receivables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are two days after trade date. No aging
analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors
of the Group, the aging analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of
the Group.

XEREEFPMREEEFPNMAE
SRMFIERRE B HAREBH - 3t
B EREHANZTEHRIELRE
BE AR EEERYEEAE

FEHRER R ABNE - B5EE
EBEENEZRIGHANGEERS
B2 HEENMA - WEKERKRD
i DERAREESRR - RA%
B R FNEE T R e 0 AT I S BREE S
BfE-
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ire BB ER M T
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-—F—+ 51 = A=+—AILFE

23. TRADE AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. BEZEWHEREWFNS (&)
In relation to trade receivable from trading and BHEETERBEENHEUNREME
manufacturing of electronic products and trading of EVESEWNFIE  AEERTHE
construction material, the general credit terms of the HEFPZ—REEH/IOANAN - K
Group granted to its trade customers is aged within S EE R E 2 R GRIE B HERRAS X
90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control Hl e ZMERETHEN AL
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances EREZEAH - BHRKRGIE KRR
are reviewed regularly by the senior management. DT -
An aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:
2017 2016
—ZT—tF —E-RF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
THT FET
Within 30 days 30HA 27,122 1,678
24. LOANS RECEIVABLES 24. EREWRIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THT FET
Loans receivables BRI IE 313,350 161,700
The aging analysis of loans receivables, based on the EREFIRIBH - EREWRIER
loan agreement date is as follows: BREC D ATIN T
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-RF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
THT FET
0 to 30 days 0230H 6,000 37,000
31 to 60 days 31260H 41,000 9,500
61 to 90 days 6190 A 8,000 8,000
Over 91 days 90 HIA E 258,350 107,200
313,350 161,700
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

24,

25.

LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The fixed-rate loans receivables of approximately
HK$313,350,000 (2016: HK$161,700,000) under
the Group ' s loan financing services operation as at
31 December 2017 represent loan advanced to 28
(2016: 14) independent third parties. The interest
rates for the loan receivables were ranging from 8%
to 14% (2016: 8% — 16%) per annum.

The loan made available to customers depends on
management’s assessment of credit risk on the
customers by evaluation on background check and
repayment abilities. The Group determines the
allowance of impaired debts based on the evaluation
of collectability and aged analysis of accounts
and on the management’s judgment, including
assessment of change of credit quality and the past
collection history of each customer. There are no
loan receivables which were past due at the end of
reporting period and the Directors consider that no
impairment was necessary.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

24.

25.

EREWRIE(E)
RZE—+tF+-A=+—HAXKE
EXBERBEETHEENEER
JE UL BR 3% 49 313,350,000 8 L ( =&
—7N% 1 161,700,000/8 7T ) I8 E K
F28H(ZE—RF 1 14%)BUE
= HHER - EREWFIEHFIEN
THF8% E14%(ZF—"F : 8%
Z16%) °

AR TEPHERBUARNEEE BB
HEESHAEREEENMAEETP
BER R o AEBERATKRE TR
AR B B9 RR R 0 T A K B 3R T 0 4 B
BRMEEREFPNERERES R
BEWERCER - BETE FTRE B 75 RO 5
- MERNGEHRCAMNENE
WHIAMESERSHARE -

BAVEFABSNEHEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Financial assets designated at fair BEATEGFABRD
value through profit or loss: TRUEE ¢
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ R&B LT HRAES 81,208 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_FT—+tF1-_A=+—HIFE

26. BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS 26. REFENRITER
The Company maintains segregated trust accounts AR B ERFFFRRITR B EER
with licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising P UBERPEREGBRERELA
from its normal course of business. The Company &L  AEBECEEFHIAE DA
has classified the clients’ monies as bank trust FEUBRARNRBEE BT
account balances under the current assets section of RIRITIErER P Aes - WIERBEN
the consolidated statement of financial position and BEEEREEIRE B ABEAER
recognised the corresponding accounts payable to FPESBEXRXIEBRANEE - ~5H
respective clients on the ground that it is liable for T EEREFESUNBITEBE BMNE
any loss or misappropriation of the client’s monies. 7 o
The Company is not permitted to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.

27. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 27. SRITRBASHEER

Bank and cash balances comprise cash and short-
term bank deposits with original maturity of three
months or less, and carry interest ranging from
0.01% to 0.8% (2016: 0.01% to 0.8%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
bank and cash balances that were in RMB, which
is not freely convertible into other currencies or
were subject to exchange controls in the PRC
amounting to approximately HK$3,730,000 (2016:
HK$6,168,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other bank and
cash balances are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.
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iR e B R M T
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-—F—+E+=A=+—AIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EBEFZEMNFIR

2017 2016
—E—tF —EB-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Margin client RESEP 28,841 28,250

Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEBERREEBRAR
Company Limited 7,843 5,510
Cash client REBEP 9,251 6,429
Trade payables B S ENIA 8,417 -
54,352 40,189

The payables of margin client and cash client are
repayable on demand except where certain trade
payables to clients represent margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities under
normal course of business. Only the excess amounts
over the required margin deposits stipulated are
repayable on demand.

The aging analysis of the trade payables, based on

RESEFPLRREEFPRNKIABE
BRER  BHEFNETESREN
REEREFPREEEBBRETEE
APREPWHHREZERI - (E2HBH
PRETEAB R HRES NS ARRER

BE -

EREREH  BIHREMNFENKR

invoice date is as follows: SR
2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET TET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 4,489 -
31 - 90 days 31290H 2,792 -
91 - 180 days 912180 H 1,136 -
8,417 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
B2 —T—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

29.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 19 January 2017, the convertible bonds with the
nominal value of HK$200,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds"”) were issued to China Force Enterprises
Inc., a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and controlled by Ms. Shen Jing, a substantial
shareholder and a former director of the Company,
who resigned on 19 April 2017.

The Convertible Bonds is convertible to ordinary
shares of the Company at any time between the
date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and 18
January 2019 (the “Maturity Date”). The Convertible
Bonds will be convertible to maximum 701,754,385
ordinary shares of US$0.005 each at conversion
prices of HK$0.285 per share.

The Company may at any time prior to the Maturity
Date and from time to time redeem the Convertible
Bonds at 100% of the outstanding principal
amount (in whole or in part) in cash by serving at
least 30 Business Days’ prior written notice on the
bondholder with the total amount proposed to be
redeemed from the bondholder specified therein.
If the bondholder issues a conversion notice on
the same date as the Company issues an early
redemption notice, the Company shall have the right
to elect whether the early redemption notice or the
conversion notice prevails.

If the Convertible Bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed at par on the Maturity
Date. Interest of 2 per cent per annum will be paid
quarterly up until the Maturity Date.
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29.

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

29. TWERES(£E)

The movements of the Group’s Convertible Bonds Bz —_T—+HF+-_A=+—HBr#K
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are as REHFESH T
follows:
HK$" 000
FET

Principal value of convertible

ERTAIRBRESAE

bonds issued 200,000
Arrangement fee ZHEH (901)
Convert into the Company’s ordinary  FRE# &K RQ 5@

shares during the year (88,000)
Fair value loss NE{EEE 901
Fair value of convertible bonds as R-ZE—tF+-HA=1T—H

at 31 December 2017 Al RESR 2 A FE 112,000
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. EEBBRER
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the RAFRIELERBER BRI
year are as follows:

Investment Intangible
Inventories properties assets Total
BE REWE EFEE @t

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TERT FER TERT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—HA—H = - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiiE — R E A A - - 165 165
Charged to profit or loss (note 13)  RB&H Ik (M3 13) - 1,879 - 1,879
Exchange differences R EE - (84) = (84)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—R"EtZA=t—H - 1,795 165 1,960
Acquisition of a subsidiary NGl NG 254 - - 254
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERBAR (1) = (1,815) (1,815)
Exchange differences B HEE - 20 - 20
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tFt-A=t—H 254 - 165 419
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. EBX
Number of
ordinary
shares
LEREA
("000) Uss$’000 HK$' 000
(FRR) FEx FEx
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2016 (US$0.001 each) R-E—RE—H—H 100,000,000 100,000 775,000
(GREE0.001 %)
Share consolidation (note b) i &0k (Fiskb) (80,000,000) - -
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—"E+-A=1—H
31 December 2017 (US$0.005 each) RZZ—+%+-A=1—-H
(BREE0.005%TT) 20,000,000 100,000 775,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTREHAR
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—-A—H 3,296,673 3,297 25,696
Issue of shares on placement (note a) ~ RELERETTRA (Hita) 190,500 191 1,482
Share consolidation (note b) Bin &6 (FizEb) (2,789,738) = =
Issue of shares on placement (note c)  RECEEZTRA (MisEc) 139,480 697 5,252
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-—R"FT-A=t—H
1 January 2017 k=E—+F—-fF—H 836,915 4,185 32,430
Issue of shares on exercise of TR ER R TR
share option (note d) i) 29,290 146 1,139
Issue of shares on conversion of REBRATAREFRET
convertible bonds (note e) ffn (Fizte) 308,772 1,544 12,011
At 31 December 2017 RZEB—+Er-A=1+—H 1,174,977 5,875 45,580
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Completion of the share placement took place on
1 February 2016 pursuant to which 190,500,000
placement shares were issued under the placement
agreement (the “February Placement”) at the
placement place of HK$0.11 per placement share
at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$20,955,000, of which approximately
HK$1,482,000 was credited to share capital
and the remaining balance of approximately
HK$18,771,000 (net of issuing expenses of
approximately HK$702,000) was credited to the
share premium account. Details of the February
Placement were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 January 2016 and 1
February 2016.

(b) Pursuant to special resolution passed on 29 July
2016, every 5 issued and unissued ordinary shares
of US0.001 each in the issued and unissued share
capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated ordinary share of US0.005 each in the
issued and unissued share capital of the Company.

(0) Completion of the share placement took place on
7 December 2016 pursuant to which 139,480,000
placement shares were issued under the placement
agreement (the “December Placement”) at the
placement place of HK$0.23 per placement share
at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$32,080,000, of which approximately
HK$5,252,000 was credited to share capital
and the remaining balance of approximately
HK$25,928,000 (net of issuing expenses of
approximately HK$900,000) was credited to the
share premium account. Details of the December
Placement were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 22 November 2016 and 7
December 2016.

31.

&GP

BT -

(a)

BOREEER =T — X FE=_H—
H 5 Ak - # 1tk + 190,500,000 %
RERGDERBEEHRRIZEEE
EgRESE/RM011EB T T U
BO(ZAGRESEHE])  BRE
#49 /20,955,000 T © E 4
1,482,000 7% JoaT AR 7S & SR RE 4
18,771,000 7T (IR BEITHZ L
702,000 7T ) st AR B ERR ©
ZHAEEFEMNFBEHREARA
HEA-—ZE—AR"F—A+tHAK=
T RNE_A—HHRAE -

BER-ZE—A"FLtA=-+NH
BBENETBERER  NAFEE
TRARBTRATEZSRERAE
£0.001 ETHEBRAE FAEEA
BB BT R ARBITIRAF 1 [REE
7#0.005 TR & BEAR (D ©

BHEEER-_E—RE+=-H
+ H K - & itk - 139,480,000
BRI ER L ERERE HRKER
EEERESRMD0.23BIL TN
B+ AREEHE]) F K4
849 /532,080,000/8 ¢ © 4
5,252,00078 JT 5T AR AR & #4258
#925,928,000 7 st ( 0 Bk 2 17 4
% #7900,000 % 7T ) 5t AR% 17 35 (B
fRe T AREFEMNFBIHRN
RNARBEHA-_ZT—XRF+—A
—t+ZBERZE-RE+ZA+

BHRE o
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
subscription rights attaching to 29,290,000 share
options issued pursuant to the share option scheme
of the Company were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$0.287 per share, resulting in the issue
of 29,290,000 Company’s ordinary shares of US$
0.005 each for the total cash consideration of
approximately HK$8,406,000 (2016: Nil).

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the holder of convertible bonds exercised the
conversion right to convert HK$88,000,000
convertible bonds into 308,771,929 Company’s
ordinary shares of US$0.005 each.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No major changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the two years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016. The capital structure of
the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 25 May 2012. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) may,
at their discretion, grant options to any directors,
executives, employees and any other persons who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
determined by the directors and not less than the
highest of:

(i) The closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the options;

(i)  The average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; and

(i)  The nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders.

32.

BB RERTE

AARR-_E——FRA-+HBEKE
m— IR IR B ([5181)) - BIRET
2 -E2xg((E5g))URBREMA
BEE  {TBRAE BERYAEERE
FrEB e EL TR 2 EMEAmA
TREERE  NREEEBEFEZER
REARRRG - REETIBSERT

JlR=E

() ARARRONBERERLDBH
e 32 P& B R(E R AR 2 W
miE

(i) ARFRROHREZBRERG
FHIAEEXBHEBI S
BERARFHEHIE
54

(i) AABBROREREBHZE
1 o

RIRETEIP] TR L ERES k2 ’RH
BERERRAIRRELLETSE
HBEARTEERRIED EITRN Z
10% ° IRBEREMFEER T RAEE
BT EMEAZBRESETRET
BIZROEBERERABIRREL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. BRESE(£E)
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days RRERHBRESNEH 1B
of that date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 in RER BREBREANRZEDE
aggregate as consideration for the options granted. H28 A AWM - BEHHESZTESRN
Vesting periods are determined by the Board on ERLHEET - WiEENERESS
each grant date. Options are lapsed if the employee BATEEEIANEE - BRI SL o
leaves the Group before the option vest.
On 20 December 2016, 58,120,000 share options R—_E—RNF+=—_H=+H"
were grants. The options may be exercised by the 58,120,000 17 fE AR #E 4% HH » A&
grantees at any time from the date of grant of share ARERERTE BRER T HEm
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. F10RF |- HAE BRI TR BB AR o
All share options vested immediately at the date of FEBIRENRLE BRI -
grant.
The following tables disclose position of the TREBNAFEARNRBRIENE
Company's share options held by director, employee B &%) :
and consultants during the year:
2017 —E—tF
Exercise Lapsed/  Outstanding at
Outstanding at during cancelled 31 December Exercisable Exercise
1January 2017 the year during the year 017 Grant date period price
R--tf R--tf
-A-# WER t2B=t-A
#iE RERGE  AW/EH Mg RHAH TEHAE it
Executive Directors yrEs
Mr. WU Xiaolin REMEE 8,300,000 = = 8300,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
ZE-RETZAZT-B  19December 2006 018787
S =
“RONETZATAR
Mr. WEN Wenfeng EXERE 8300000 - - 8,300,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
ZE-RETZAZT-B  19December 2006 0877
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BE—F—+F T _HA=1T—HIFE
32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. BRERE(E)
2017 (Continued) —EBE—tF(E)
Exercise Lapsed/  Outstanding at
Qutstanding at during cancelled 31 December Exercisable Exercise
1 January 2017 the year during the year 217 Grant date period price
RZE-tE HB-tE
-A-H WER  tZA=t-R
#ME  RERGE  RN/EH K& RuAH THENEE i@
Non-executive Directors #4782
Mr. LUNG Chee Ming George ~ EEFH%% 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - - 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
ZE-NETZAZT-B 19 December 2026 008737
“TET-A-tEE
ZEETCATAR
YE WeiMing EEUTE 6000000 - (6,000,000) - 31December2016 20 December 2016- HK$0.287
ZE-NETZAZT-B 19 December 2026 008737
“E-NETCR-tRE
ZRINETZATAR
M. TSE Long HRTE 410,000 - - 410,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.267
ZE-NETZAZT-B 19 December 2026 008737
_3- /\ﬁ' ﬂ +EE
ZRINETZATAR
Dr. LOKE Yu alias EEHEL 410,000 - - 410,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
Loke Hoi Lam ZE-NETZAZT-B 19 December 2026 008737
“TET-A-tEE
ZEETCATAR
Mr. ZENG Zhaolin LSt 410,000 - - 410,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.267
ZE-NETZAZT-B 19 December 2026 008737
“E-NETCR-tRE
ZRINETZATAR
Sub-total 5 29830000 (6,000,000 (6,000,000) 17,830,000
Consultant Ef 7990,000  (7,990,000) - - 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
ZE-NETZAZT-B 19 December 2026 0.087 37
e S 2 el e -
Z2RETZATAR
Other employes EfEE 20300000 (15,300,000 - 5000000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
:?—/—ﬁtﬂﬁ—ﬁ 19 December 2026 0.087 37
“E-NETZRCTRE
ZENETZATAR
Total &5 58,120,000 (29,290,000 (6,000,000) 22,830,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. BRERE(E)
2016 —E—-XRE
Granted ~ Outstanding at
Qutstanding at during 31 December Evercisable Erercise
1 January 2016 the year 2016 Grant date period price
RoF-nE NEB-pE
-R-H +Zf=t+-8
A RERED A RuRE itk i
Executive Directors 4783
Mr. WU ialin REMLE - 8300000 8,300,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 02877
7‘ /\ﬁ' ﬂ +E§
o Sy 2 b
Mr. WEN Wenfeng €St - 8300000 8,300,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RNETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 0877
7‘ /\ﬁ' ﬂ +E§
o Sy 2 b
Non-executive Directors 1782
Mr. LUNG Chee Ming George %54 - 6000000 6,000,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RNETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 0877
7‘ /\ﬁ' ﬂ +E§
o Sy 2 b
Mr. YE WeiMing FRiRe - 6,000,000 6,000,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RNETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 0877
“IrET-A-tEE
“RINETZATAR
Mr. TSE Long ARkE - 410,000 410,000 31 Decermber 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RNETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 0877
7‘ /\ﬁ' ﬂ +E§
o Sy 2 b
Dr, LOKE Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam B8 £ - 410,000 410,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RNETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 08757
7‘ /\ﬁ' ﬂ +E§
o Sy 2 b
Mr. ZENG Zhaolin L2t - 410,000 410,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“F-RNETZAZT-H 19 December 2026 08757

“E-NEt-ACTHE
B ETZATAA
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. EERENE(E)
2016 (Continued) —E-XREE)

Granted ~ Qutstanding at

Qutstanding at during 31 December Brercisable Erercise
1 January 2016 the year 2016 Grant date period price
RZE-nE KRB
£ t=A=t-A
AMiE RERRY A REES T ik
Sub-total 5t - 180000 29830000
Consultant Ef - 7,990,000 7990,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287

“E-RETZAZT-B 19 December 2006 02877

ZE-rETZAZTRE

ZRETZATAE
Other employegs HihEE - 20,300,000 20,300,000 31 December 2016 20 December 2016 - HK$0.287
“E-RETZAZT-B 19 December 2006 02877

CE-REtCACtRE

ZRETZATAE

Total gt - 58,120,000 58,120,000
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. BRERTE (E)
Movement Movement
from from

1 January 2017 1 January 2016
to 31 December to 31 December

2017 2016
B-ZE—tF BT —RF
~-A—-AE —A—A=
—E—tF —TREF
+=BA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
228 -
Balance at 1 January R—A—B &gk 58,120,000 -
Granted during the year RERNE T - 58,120,000
Exercise during the year RERNTTE (29,290,000) -
Lapsed/cancelled during the year RERKKFEH (6,000,000) —
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAITTEE 22,830,000 58,120,000
Weighted average exercise price INEFIHITEE 0.287 0.287
The options outstanding at the end of the year have RAFERERRITHEABEREAES T 0
a weighted average remaining contractual life of BEHEHNFHRBITF(ZZE—R
8.97 years (2016: 9.97 years). F :997%F) -
These fair values were calculated using the binomial AFPEEBA B ERETERENA
option pricing model. The inputs into the model are B o ZEANBABBRLOT
as follows:
20 December 2016
—E-RFE+ZA=tH
Expected volatility TE 2R R 18 96.28%
Expected life T8 HA 5 B 10 years
105
Risk free rate 2 [ e 1) 2.09%
Expected dividend yield ARt IR Bl a X 0.00%
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33. RESERVES 33. f@&fE
(a) Group (a) A*£EH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and TEEZRELREZH 2N
movements therein are presented in the meEakEMEmBER &
consolidated statement of profit or loss and IRERREHE -

other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) ADTZ@HHE

Share-based
Share payment Retained

premium reserve profits Total
URB X2
R aE MERE REER st

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
TR TER TERT TERT

At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F-HA—A 218,896 - 115,623 334,519
Share-based payment MR 2 58 - 8,353 - 8,353
Issue of shares IR M 44,699 - - 44,699
Loss for the year AEEER - - (78,681) (78,681)

At 31 December 2016 RZE-—~"F+-HA=+—H

and 1 January 2017 k—F—+%—H—H 263,595 8,353 36,942 308,890
Issue of shares on exercise ~ RITHREERIERE1TRG

of share options 11,262 (3,995) - 7,267
Shares options lapsed R K2 IR

during the year - (906) 906 -
Issue of shares on conversion 7 & AT # iR & 565

of convertible bonds BIIRAD 75,989 - - 75,989
Loss for the year AEEERE (4,717) (4,717)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&+=-A=+—H 350,846 3,452 33,131 387,429
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. “#AB4REXRKT

CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing BEREEECEEETH
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRINTFAREE R ERSHESL
liabilities arising from financing activities during the ZEEES :
year:
Convertible
bonds
ARRES
HK$’000
TR
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H =
Changes in cash flows ReEmEEE -
At 31 December 2016 R-ZZB-—RE+-A=1t—8K
and 1 January 2017 —T—+F—H—H -
Changes in cash flows REREF 195,707
Non-cash changes R FE
— interest charge —MEWE 3,392
— fair value change — N EEE 901
— conversion into shares — BRI (88,000)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H 112,000
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35.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. ZXARBMBHRRE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial BHBENR RS BAR 2 SRR R
position of the Company at the end of the reporting ZERBINT ¢
period includes:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF TE—RF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FET FAETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHBARZIKE 2 2
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b & W K38 2 TR AN 5RIE 993 574
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK Bt /B~ R FRIB 526,107 314,080
Amount due from a director JEUW — R EEFIE 580 127
Bank and cash balances R1T IR &R 18,142 26,969
545,822 341,750
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H b & (< K18 815 432
Net current assets RBEEFE 545,007 341,318
Total assets less current liabilities ZREERAHERS 545,009 341,320
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Convertible bonds Al MR E S 112,000 -
NET ASSETS BEEFE 433,009 341,320
Equity =
Share capital [N 45,580 32,430
Reserves ] 387,429 308,890
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 433,009 341,320
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36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. REHERE
(a) The Group as lessor (a) AKEEALHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIEHR  NEBEBSH
had contracted with tenants for the following THIRKRFEBENRETA -

future minimum lease payments:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT FET
Within one year R—FA 2,289 615
In the second to fifth years, FERFRF
inclusive (BREEMS) 9,231 8,285
Over 5 years AFEUE 40,771 40,520
52,291 49,420
(b) The Group as lessee (b) ?FE{F&E‘*HA N
rr‘/\'—ﬁ—\ y A F 3 7
Leases for office premises are negotiated for *b*Ai%%mjﬂfmﬁﬁ%” ¥
terms ranging from 1 to 2 years. At the end 1225 E’\\#Bi:._ﬁfji AR
of the reporting period, the Group’s total *EB;T\EI@%%%EﬁEE@*
o B FA S (< 2h 4 5E > T
future minimum lease payments under non- REEREN AR
cancellable operating leases falling due as L
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Within one year —F R 1,674 2,206
In the second to fifth years, FE_EERF
inclusive (BEEREME) 759 1,212
2,433 3,418
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37.

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. The details of their remuneration are
set out in note 15. Other than that, the Group has
no other significant transactions and balances with
related parties.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete
list of the particulars of all subsidiaries would be
of excessive length and therefore the following
list contains only the subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period which principally affect the results
and financial position of the Group.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

37.

38.

Issued and paid-up

BB S X5
TZEBABRARAER - KELZ
BN MEE 15 o BRut 25
AEBEBY T BELMEARS R
RERR o

TEWE L AFE
EEZAREI—NTBZMBARE
BTG ZRESSIFEEILR - Bz
FIH R E BRIA TR AREBERE M
MBHRREEBZE B AR

NBEER  ARAEEMBEATZ
BT

Place of share capital/

incorporation/ registered capital Percentage of ownership interest/  Principal
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation BRTRAR voting power activities
WEATER G AN EEMY  Re/ERER {EfERRR/ RERNEAL IERK

Direct Indirect

E% 3
Kerui Financial Services Limited HK HK Ordinary = 100% Provision of
(Formerly known as Fulbond 3 B HK$10,000 management
Corporate Management Limited) EEk services
Hire BRI ARAA 10,0007 e E R

(HRRACFERARAA)

Source Peak Limited HK HK HKS1 - 100% Investment in
BEERAR Bk B 18T securites
BHRE
Prance Fortune Investments Limited BVI BVI US$10,000 - 100% Investment
BRRERRA KERLRE RERAHE 10,000%7 holding
REER

HERRERAT 201748 167 r
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEKMBRATFEE)

(Continued)
Issued and paid-up
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital Percentage of ownership interest/  Principal
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation BRTRAR voting power activities
WEADEH G AN EE4Y  Ra/ifEx {ifERER/ RERNEAL TERB
Direct Indirect
E# B
Achieve Prime Limited HK HK Ordinary - 100% Investment
GERAR 3 B HK$10,000 holding
EBR REBR
10,0047
Xin Fu International Limited BVI BvI US$1 100% = Investment
ZERIES EERAES 157 holding
Wise Utility Enterprises Limited BVI BVI US$1 - 100% Property
ABRUEE EERAES 157 Investment
NERE
Cheng Da Development Limited BVI BvI HKS1 100% = Investment
ZERIES EERAES 18T holding
Kerui Finance Group Limited HK HK Ordinary = 100% Investment
(Formerly known as New Winning 3 3 HK$10,000 holding
International Group Limited) Lk REBK
HireEsEARAA 10,0007
(HRAERERSERRAR)
Eminent Alliance Investments Limited BVI BVI US$100 100% = Investment
ZERAES EBRIES 100£7 holding
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEKMBRATFEE)

(Continued)
Issued and paid-up
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital Percentage of ownership interest/  Principal
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation BRTRAR voting power activities
WEADEH G AN EEMY  Re/iRER {EHERRSE/ RERNEAY TERE
Direct Indirect
E# B

ERSARERAERARAT PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Property
hE hE ARE Investment
1,000,000 nEkE
BRI AERARAT PRC PRC RMB9,000,000 - 100% Property
hE e ARE Investment
9,000,000 nEkE
Jolly Profit Investments Limited HK HK HKS 1 - 100% Property
3 B 18T Investment
NFRE
New Winning Finance Company Limited HK HK HK$10 = 100% Loan financing
HERIHARAR (3 B 1047 services
HRERK
Lamtex Securities Limited HK HK Ordinary - 100% Securities
HmERFARAA 3 B HK$60,000,000 brokerage and
EER provision of
60,000,000 margin finance
EHELR
Praise Perfection Limited HK HK HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of
SEERAT B & 10,0007 electronic products
ETEMER
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38.

39.

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

38.

Issued and paid-up

Place of
incorporation/
registration

i/

Place of operation

gEnY

Name of subsidiary

il LT

share capital/

registered capital

BRTRAR
R&/dRER

TEWEBARFE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power
{ifERER/ RERNEAL
Direct Indirect

Bk 3

Principal
activities

FRXE

Ef R 22 TEBARAA PRC PRC

P i

==

Meteor Investment (H.K.) Limited HK HK
ERRERRAA

mh
o

PRC
E

PRC
E

RAEBREARAA

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In March 2018, the Company completed a
placement of 170,000,000 new shares with value of
HK$0.43 each (the “March 2018 Placement”). The
March Placement was referred to the announcement
dated 7 March 2018 under the General Mandate.
After the completion of the March 2018 Placement,
the issued share capital of the Company has been
further enlarged to 1,344,976,579 shares in total.

The Company intends to use the net proceeds from
the placing for the development of new business if
opportunities arise and for general working capital.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 March 2018.
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RMB10,000,000
AEH
10,000,0007C

HK$10,000
10,0007

RMB8,000,000
ARH
8,000,007

39.

40.

- 100% Manufacturing
of electronic
products
ETEmHE
- 100% Investment
holding
REER
= 100% Tour operation
EERE

REMEEE
RZZE—N\F=A ' KARRIZKEE
170,000,000 & &A% 0.43 T ¥ AR 9
([ZZE—NF=ZABRREFHE]) - =
ARESHENIBRE —RBTEET(R
— T N\FZAtAQEREM) -
TE-NFZARESTETKE
RAIEBITRAE —TREBAES
1,344,976,579 % °

%
1t

S

clRh

AR RIS ECE SRS IR FRAME
PRI el 4 & 1 3R By B PR R SR 75 I PR A
—REEES -

AR M EHE

HAEPBHRRER T N\F=A
“thBEE=SRERRETE -



Financial Summary
B I5ELE

AEERAEREAFREECEE  BER
BEZHBEHIWOT - E?ﬁﬁ@ﬂ?lﬁ*
IREZERAVBERE VEKEEE
5, EFOLE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited consolidated financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:

RESULTS e

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

“E—+tF —ERF ZE-RF —E-NF —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FTAT THET TAT TAT

Revenue PN 122,653  (101,905) (177,804) 160,865 16,815

Profit/(Loss) before taxation BRE AR, (EE) 32,115  (136,264) (257,305) 129,139 20,279

Tax I8 3,771 (2,027) 2,742 (6,512) =

Profit/(Loss) for the year AEERF/ (BE) 28,344  (138,291) (254,563) 122,627 20,279
Attributable to: THE R

Owners of the Company ZN/NCIE PN 28,344  (138,291) (251,343) 122,627 24,416

Non-controlling interests IR - - (3,220) - (4,137)

28,344  (138,291) (254,563) 122,627 20,279

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=B=+-—H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

“E—tF —E-RF —E-RF —E-NF —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FTAT THET TAT TAT

Total assets BEE 661,147 386,218 427,521 611,351 470,135

Total liabilities mafE (186,855)  (44,8998) (909) (9,967) (183,131)

Net assets EEFE 474,292 341,320 426,612 601,384 287,004
Attributable to: THIE R

Owners of the Company /NG PN 474,292 341,320 426,612 601,384 287,004

Non-controlling interests IR - - - - -

474,292 341,320 426,612 601,384 287,004

The financial summary does not from part of the audited HEBMETEXSERGATBERRN—

consolidated financial statements.

o
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REMEFIS
Attributable
Particulars of interest of
Property occupancy Tenure the Group
AEEEG
L/ES HRAFE HEH £
Block A-27, Site A of  The Property was tenant- Medium Term lease 100%
First City, No. 399 occupied and operated as
Jinzhu Road, a 3-star hotel.
Guanshanhu District,
Guiyang City,
Guizhou Province,
the PRC
1 MEBHFBEARELE— FHHEE
=k M=248)E -
=hil
L=
TR
3395 FE —WMAR
ARE27
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